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1 both your cabinet and Florene 1s. 

2 Okay. At t h i s time we w i l l c a l l the next case 

3 on the docket. I t i s the a p p l i c a t i o n of Agua Sucia, LLC, 

4 t o r e i n s t a t e D i v i s i o n A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Order SWD-559 f o r a 

5 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l i n Lea County, New Mexico. I t ' s 

6 Case Number 14411. Are there at t o r n e y s present? 

7 MR. BRUCE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, would you 

9 s t a t e your appearance, please? 

10 MR. BRUCE: Jim Bruce, of Santa Fe, 

11 re p r e s e n t i n g the a p p l i c a n t . I have two witnesses. 

12 MR. CARR: May i t please the Commission? 

13 W i l l i a m F. Carr, w i t h the Santa Fe o f f i c e of Holland & 

14 Hart, LLP. We represent Armstrong Energy Corporation i n 

15 t h i s matter i n o p p o s i t i o n t o the a p p l i c a t i o n , and I have 

16 three witnesses. 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Bruce, do 

18 you have an opening statement? 

19 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r 

2 0 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would you l i k e t o make 

21 i t now? 

22 MR. BRUCE: Yes. 

23 May i t please the Commission? We're here 

24 today concerning Government E Well No. 1, located i n the 

25 southwest corner of the southwest q u a r t e r of Section 25, 
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1 19 South, 34 East. 

2 I n 1994 or '95, D i v i s i o n A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Order 

3 SWD-559 authorized i n j e c t i o n i n t o the Bone Spring 

4 formation i n t h a t w e l l as t o depths from 9,716 t o 10,240 

5 f e e t . I n j e c t i o n operations were conducted from t h a t time 

6 u n t i l January 2008. 

7 At t h a t time a f a i l u r e was discovered i n the 

8 w e l l and operations ceased. There has been no i n j e c t i o n 

9 i n t o the w e l l since January of '08, almost three years. 

10 The operator at t h a t time, Louray O i l Company, 

11 attempted t o r e p a i r i t but was unsuccessful. I n March t o 

12 A p r i l 2009, Agua Sucia r e p a i r e d the w e l l at a cost of 

13 over $400,000. However, since i n j e c t i o n had not occurred 

14 f o r over a year, i n j e c t i o n had already lapsed, and 

15 r e a u t h o r i z a t i o n had t o be obtained. Armstrong Energy 

16 objected, and the D i v i s i o n denied a u t h o r i t y t o recommence 

17 i n j e c t i o n . 

18 One t h i n g t h a t i s s t r i k i n g about the 

19 D i v i s i o n ' s order denying t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n i s t h a t i t 

2 0 completely ignored the r e p a i r work done t o the w e l l i n 

21 2009. 

22 Now, one t h i n g Agua Sucia does not deny i s 

23 t h a t before i t took over operations, there was a problem 

24 w i t h the w e l l . My witnesses w i l l admit t o i t . 

25 Mr. Carr's witnesses w i l l t e s t i f y t o i t . However, t h a t 
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1 problem was discovered, i n j e c t i o n ceased, and the problem 

2 was corrected. 

3 Our witnesses w i l l show today t h a t the w e l l i s 

4 ready t o i n j e c t i n t o without any harm t o o f f s e t s . I n 

5 f a c t , Buddy H i l l , the Hobbs d i s t r i c t supervisor, has 

6 s t a t e d t h a t the w e l l i s ready t o i n j e c t i n t o . 

7 And t o prove t h a t , Agua Sucia i s ready t o do 

8 at i t s own expense any t e s t s t h a t the Commission desires 

9 which are reasonably necessary t o prove t h a t the w e l l i s 

10 mechanically sound, such as r a d i o a c t i v e surveys i n 

11 combination w i t h temperature surveys, so t h a t the 

12 p o s s i b i l i t y of any channeling or any other type of 

13 problem w i t h the w e l l can be v e r i f i e d or, I should say, 

14 proven i n the negative. This w i l l s a t i s f y everyone t h a t 

15 i n j e c t i o n can occur without problem. 

16 I t ' s Agua Sucia's p o s i t i o n t h a t the current 

17 wellbore i n t e g r i t y i s the only issue before you today. 

1.8 From Armstrong you w i l l hear a l o t about what occurred 

19 before January 2008, when i n j e c t i o n ceased. Again, Agua 

20 Sucia does not deny t h a t there were problems before i t 

21 took over operations of the w e l l . There were w e l l 

22 i n t e g r i t y problems. 

23 But three t h i n g s : Those problems were the 

24 r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the p r i o r operator, Louray; those 

25 problems have been f i x e d ; and i f Armstrong has any issues 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 cU-41 Cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 



Page 157 

1 w i t h Louray, t h a t ' s not a D i v i s i o n matter. That's a 

2 D i s t r i c t Court a c t i o n . 

3 There are other items which Armstrong brought 

4 up i n the f i r s t hearing. They claim, w e l l , there's been 

5 o i l sales from the tank b a t t e r y o n s i t e . Yes, there have 

6 been. Because the c u r r e n t s i t u a t i o n , and i t ' s been 

7 ongoing f o r a year or more, i s t h a t water i s brought --

8 trucked o n s i t e and put i n the tank b a t t e r i e s . I t ' s not 

9 i n j e c t e d . 

10 But Agua Sucia gets skim o i l o f f those tank 

11 b a t t e r i e s , and then the water i s shipped o f f s i t e t o an 

12 a d j o i n i n g Chesapeake w a t e r f l o o d . There has been no 

13 i n j e c t i o n there's no pr o d u c t i o n from t h i s w e l l . There's 

14 no i n j e c t i o n from t h i s w e l l . And ev e r y t h i n g Agua Sucia 

15 has done i s l e g a l . They have complied w i t h the 

16 D i v i s i o n ' s r e g u l a t i o n s . 

17 And even though we cla i m t h a t the cu r r e n t 

1.8 wellbore i n t e g r i t y i s the sole issue, Armstrong has 

19 before and i t w i l l today s t a t e t h a t s u b s t a n t i a l volumes 

20 of water were i n j e c t e d i n t o the Government E No. 1 before 

21 2008, which harmed t h e i r w ellbore. 

22 Again we're not sure of what occurred, but 

23 t h a t ' s r e a l l y not the problem today. We j u s t want 

24 a u t h o r i t y t o i n j e c t going forward, and we w i l l show t h a t 

25 i n j e c t i o n can be done wi t h o u t harm t o o f f s e t s . 
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1 They might also s t a t e t h a t , w e l l , a l o t of 

2 water has been i n j e c t e d i n t o the Bone Spring formation by 

3 the Government E No. 1, which was a producing w e l l 

4 o r i g i n a l l y , i n j e c t i o n s t h a t exceeded the volume of f l u i d s 

5 t h a t were e x t r a c t e d . 

6 Mr. Lee, our engineer, w i l l t e s t i f y t h a t t h a t 

7 i s not uncommon i n a Bone Spring w e l l , and he w i l l g ive 

8 examples of other Bone Spring i n j e c t o r s where t h a t has 

9 occurred. 

10 I n sh o r t , Armstrong's p o s i t i o n i s based on 

11 what happened before 2008, which i s , we b e l i e v e , 

12 i r r e l e v a n t , because those problems have been f i x e d . 

13 Number two, they can merely speculate about 

14 what may occur i f i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y i s r e i n s t a t e d . 

15 However, the e x h i b i t s and the testimony w i l l show t h a t 

16 the wellbore i s sound and t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n should be 

17 approved. Thank you. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, would you 

19 l i k e t o wait or --

20 MR. CARR: I t h i n k I ' l l open now. 

21 Mr. Bruce a c c u r a t e l y summarized the h i s t o r y of 

22 the w e l l . But you have p a r t i e s before you today t h a t 

23 stand before you i n very d i f f e r e n t r o l e s . 

24 I represent Armstrong Energy Corporation. And 

25 I also have w i t h me J e r r y Guy, of Guy O i l & Gas, and they 
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1 own the minerals under the acreage i n which i n j e c t i o n has 

2 occurred and, i f the a p p l i c a t i o n i s granted, w i l l occur 

3 again. Agua Sucia comes before you asking f o r 

4 a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o resume i n j e c t i o n , and they have only a 

5 wellbore assignment and an expired permit. 

6 While Mr. Bruce would l i k e t o ch a r a c t e r i z e 

7 what our case i s going t o be, perhaps I should t e l l you 

8 why we're o b j e c t i n g . We're o b j e c t i n g f o r the very 

9 reasons the D i v i s i o n denied the a p p l i c a t i o n i n the f i r s t 

10 instance. They've already put i n the w e l l 10 times the 

11 volume t h a t was produced out of t h a t w e l l , and we can see 

12 d i r e c t communication between ev e r y t h i n g they have done i n 

13 the past i n t h a t w e l l and what happens i n our o f f s e t t i n g 

14 producing w e l l s . 

15 But whi l e they would l i k e t o ignore the past, 

16 j u s t because you pass the hat around between various 

1.7 operators, i t doesn't change the f a c t t h a t they l e f t 

18 behind a s i t u a t i o n where they have a wellbore t h a t i s n ' t 

19 cased -- the casing i s n ' t cemented behind the Queen, the 

20 San Andres and the Delaware; t h a t they have pressured 

21 those up; t h a t there has been evidence of d i r e c t 

22 communication between them. 

23 They d i d n ' t put cement behind the casing. 

24 They put a l i n e r i n and i n cemented i t , so you can't put 

25 cement behind the casing. And we can produce water u n t i l 
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1 the cows come home, but we have t o produce i t out of the 

2 Queen, we have t o produce i t out of the San Andres, and 

3 we have t o produce i t out of the Delaware, because the 

4 way t h i s w e l l has been "repaired." 

5 And we be l i e v e t h a t when we come t o you, the 

6 issue i s n ' t the i n t e g r i t y of a wellbore l i n e r t h a t you 

7 can get from the surface t o the Bone Spring. The issue 

8 i s whether o r not you're going t o be a u t h o r i z i n g and 

9 condoning the waste of o i l and gas. 

10 We also t h i n k there are other p r o v i s i o n s of 

11 the O i l and Gas Act t h a t come i n t o p l a y here. You're 

12 charged w i t h duty t o prevent crude o i l or n a t u r a l gas or 

13 water from escaping from the s t r a t a i n which i t i s found 

14 i n t o another s t r a t a . We have t h a t here. 

15 You aire also d i r e c t e d t o prevent the drowning 

16 by water of any stratum or p a r t thereof capable of 

17 producing o i l or gas or both, and we have t h a t here. And 

18 t o have merely r e - e s t a b l i s h e d t h a t you can put water at 

19 the surface and get i t t o the Bone Spring doesn't address 

2 0 the question of what's going on i n the formation and what 

21 t h i s i n j e c t i o n i n the f u t u r e w i l l do t o the o f f s e t t i n g 

22 p r o p e r t y owners. 

23 And whi l e they would l i k e t o say, "Well, we're 

24 going t o look a t the past, and we passed the hat; we're 

25 new people; now you only look a t the wellbore," i f you do 
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t h a t , you w i l l v i o l a t e the law. 

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, would you 

3 ask your witnesses t o stand and be sworn, please? 

4 (Two witnesses were sworn.) 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, who's your 

6 f i r s t witness? 

7 MR. BRUCE: Ben Stone. 

8 BEN STONE 

9 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

10 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

11 BY MR. BRUCE: 

12 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

13 record? 

14 A. Ben Stone. 

15 Q. And where do you reside? 

16 A. Como, Texas. 

17 Q. What i s your occupation? 

18 A. My w i f e and I c u r r e n t l y own and operate SOS 

19 Consulting. We a s s i s t w i t h r e g u l a t o r y processing. My 

20 w i f e i s an o i l and gas revenue accountant, and I do some 

21 database work. 

22 Q. What i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p t o Agua Sucia? 

23 A. They contacted me i n A p r i l of '09 t o 

24 r e i n s t a t e -- I thought t o simply r e i n s t a t e an expired 

25 s a l t w a t e r disposal permit. 
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1 Q. And you're s t i l l employed by Agua Sucia? 

2 A. I am. 

3 Q. And have you worked w i t h them on other 

4 r e g u l a t o r y matters i n v o l v e d w i t h t h e i r operations i n the 

5 state? 

6 A. I have. 

7 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

8 Commission? 

9 A. No, I haven't. 

10 Q. Would you summarize your educational and 

11 employment background? 

12 A. My formal education i s a c t u a l l y i n graphic 

13 a r t s . But when I f i g u r e d out I wasn't going t o make a 

14 m i l l i o n d o l l a r s i n graphic a r t s , I went i n t o the o i l 

15 patch and s t a r t e d wire l i n i n g i n 1977. I've been i n wire 

16 l i n i n g f o r approximately 15 years. 

17 I e v e n t u a l l y became a senior engineer f o r a t 

18 l e a s t two d i f f e r e n t companies. I've run operations on 

19 something over 5,000 w e l l s . I've got w e l l over 15,000 

2 0 hours' downhole experience. 

21 Beyond t h a t , a f t e r t h i n g s slowed down i n the 

22 service i n d u s t r y , I went t o work f o r the O i l Conservation 

23 D i v i s i o n i n 1992 as a petroleum engineer and s p e c i a l i s t . 

24 I processed several hundred a d m i n i s t r a t i v e a p p l i c a t i o n s , 

25 i n c l u d i n g s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l a p p l i c a t i o n s , i n t h a t 
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1 p o s i t i o n . And i n the l a s t few years there, I became 

2 involved i n t h e i r data management e f f o r t s , i n c l u d i n g the 

3 implementation of the risk-based data management system. 

4 Q. You mentioned you worked f o r a couple of 

5 companies. Which companies d i d you work for? 

6 A. I s t a r t e d -- wire l i n e , I s t a r t e d o f f w i t h 

7 Cardinal Surveys, went t o Geo Source wire l i n e . I went 

8 from there t o A r m a d i l l o Wire Line. I was the d i s t r i c t 

9 supervisor f o r t h a t shop i n Hobbs. I went from there 

10 back t o Cardinal Surveys and managed t h e i r i n j e c t i o n 

11 department t o manipulate and p u l l together logging data 

12 i n t o p r e s e n t a t i o n s . 

13 And from there I wrapped up my career i n wire 

14 l i n e w i t h NM McKolla f o r about three years. 

15 Q. As p a r t of your work i n the p r i v a t e sector, 

16 d i d you become f a m i l i a r i z e d w i t h r a d i o a c t i v e t r a c e r 

17 surveys? 

18 A. A b s o l u t e l y . My s p e c i a l t y was production 

19 logging, so I was i n t i m a t e l y f a m i l i a r w i t h operations 

2 0 i n v o l v i n g r a d i o a c t i v e surveys and various t r a c e r s , 

21 various isotopes. 

22 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the matters i n v o l v e d 

23 w i t h t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n t o r e i n s t a t e the i n j e c t i o n 

24 a u t h o r i t y f o r Agua Sucia? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I tender 

2 Mr. Stone as an expert i n O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n 

3 r e g u l a t o r y a f f a i r s . 

4 MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: H e ' l l be so admitted. 

6 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Stone, before we get i n t o 

7 your e x h i b i t s , j u s t confirm f o r me, Agua Sucia does not 

8 dispute t h a t before January 2008, there were problem w i t h 

9 the Government E Number 1 well? 

10 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. And t h a t was at a time when the w e l l was 

12 operated by Louray O i l Company? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . 

14 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , have those problems been 

15 i d e n t i f i e d ? 

16 A. They have been i d e n t i f i e d and, I bel i e v e , 

17 r e p a i r e d . 

18 Q. W i l l you t a l k about what has been done t o 

19 c o r r e c t the s i t u a t i o n w i t h the wellbore? 

2 0 A. Sure. Do you want me t o go i n t o --

21 Q. F i r s t of a l l , E x h i b i t 1 i s submitted as an 

22 e x h i b i t . That's simply the order from the Hearing 

23 Examiner; i s i t not? 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 Q. And what i s E x h i b i t 2? 
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1 A. That's the C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t I submitted 

2 on behalf of Agua Sucia t o r e i n s t a t e the s a l t w a t e r 

3 disposal o p e r a t i o n . 

4 Q. Could you go through t h a t b r i e f l y f o r the 

5 Commission and discuss i t s contents? I t ' s already 

6 g e t t i n g l a t e today. Could you h i t the h i g h l i g h t s ? 

7 A. Sure. I t ' s p r e t t y standard. This i t e r a t i o n 

8 i s , I b e l i e v e , the complete a p p l i c a t i o n , i n c l u d i n g a 

9 cover l e t t e r t o the D i r e c t o r of the D i v i s i o n , j u s t 

10 e x p l a i n i n g what Agua Sucia sought by r e i n s t a t i n g t h i s 

11 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

12 I also p o i n t e d out i n t h a t l e t t e r my phone 

13 conversation w i t h Buddy H i l l , d i s t r i c t supervisor f o r OCD 

14 i n Hobbs, where he s t a t e d t h a t we had l o t s of issues w i t h 

15 the previous operator, Louray, and t h a t the w e l l i s 

16 t e c h n i c a l l y sound and ready f o r i n j e c t i o n . 

17 A f t e r t h a t i s the C-108 form, w i t h various 

18 p e r t i n e n t data f i l l e d i n , maps of the l o c a t i o n , area of 

19 review, the updated wellbore schematics and t a b u l a t i o n of 

20 w e l l s i n the area of review, plugged and abandoned 

21 schematics as a p p l i c a b l e , and a n a r r a t i v e d e s c r i p t i o n of 

22 the r e p a i r attempts t h a t were made on the w e l l . 

23 Q. F i r s t of a l l , w i t h respect t o Government E 

4 Number 1, w i t h the data you have, has the w e l l been 

25 p r o p e r l y r e p a i r e d such t h a t i t w i l l prevent the movement 
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1 of f l u i d between zones? 

2 A. I b e l i e v e i t has. They i n s t a l l e d 5,700 f e e t 

3 of new f o u r - i n c h l i n e r . And i t ' s been cemented top t o 

4 bottom, which i s o l a t e d a l l the bad sections of pipe t h a t 

5 were i d e n t i f i e d i n the w e l l . 

6 Q. And w i t h respect t o any of the abandoned 

7 wellbores, have they been p r o p e r l y plugged and abandoned? 

8 A. As f a r as I can t e l l , yes. 

9 Q. This i s a p a r t i a l d i s p o s a l ; correct? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. What are the approximate volumes of disposal 

12 i n t h i s well? 

13 A. I'm sor r y , Mr. Bruce. I'm not sure what t h e . 

14 a c t u a l volumes are. 

15 Q. W i l l the a p p l i c a n t comply w i t h the .2 p s i per 

16 f o o t --

17 A. Absol u t e l y . 

18 Q. -- pressure l i m i t a t i o n ? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 Q. What type of water i s being i n j e c t e d i n t o the 

21 well? 

22 A. Genera l ly , area o f p r o d u c t i o n , Bone Spr ing , 

23 Delaware p r o d u c t i o n . 

24 Q. About ha l fway through t h i s , t h e r e ' s a C-108 

25 suppor t i ng data , k i n d o f a n a r r a t i v e o f what was done 
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i w i t h the well? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. Could you go through t h a t b r i e f l y ? 

4 A. I wrote up t h i s n a r r a t i v e based on the f i e l d 

5 notes made by Louis Edgett d u r i n g h i s f i r s t r e p a i r 

6 attempt, and t h a t s t a r t e d on January 22nd, 2008. And i t 

7 describes j u s t t h e i r r i g g i n g up on the w e l l , going i n , 

8 t r y i n g t o clean the hole out, and using a plug and packer 

9 t o lo c a t e and i d e n t i f y the bad sections of pipe and 

10 i s o l a t e those. 

11 They set a bridge plug and a cement r e t a i n e r 

12 above t h a t i n t e r v a l and pumped 760 sacks of cement 

13 between the e i g h t and f i v e - e i g h t h s intermediate s p r i n g 

14 and the five-and-a-half casings t o t r y and cover t h a t 

15 i n t e r v a l , i n c l u d i n g across the Queen s e c t i o n . 

16 Q. Then there was the subsequent r e p a i r attempt; 

17 correc t ? 

18 A. Yes, s i r . On the f o l l o w i n g page, i t ' s labeled 

19 as the f i n a l r e p a i r , March t o A p r i l 2009. And t h a t 

2 0 describes the work t h a t was performed by Mr. A l Perry, 

21 who was a consultant t h a t they h i r e d t o i n s t a l l the 

22 f o u r - i n c h l i n e r , get i t cemented and f i n i s h up t h a t 

23 r e p a i r j o b . They u l t i m a t e l y concluded t h a t w i t h a 

24 mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t . 

25 Q. Was t h a t t e s t s a t i s f a c t o r y ? 
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1 A. Yes. That was i n A p r i l of '09. 

2 Q. Approximately how much money was spent on t h i s 

3 r e p a i r attempt, t h i s subsequent r e p a i r attempt? 

4 A. About $432,000. 

5 Q. Are copies of those invoices submitted as 

6 E x h i b i t 4? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. I t was a f t e r t h i s March t o A p r i l r e p a i r t h a t 

9 the supervisor of the Hobbs D i s t r i c t O f f i c e s t a t e d t o you 

10 t h a t the w e l l was p r o p e r l y r e p a i r e d and ready f o r 

11 i n j e c t i o n ? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . That was the r e s u l t of a phone 

13 conversation I had w i t h him about a month afterwards. So 

14 I would say t h a t was on May 19th, 2009, about a month 

15 a f t e r the r e p a i r . 

16 Q. One f i n a l t h i n g on t h i s . You have water 

17 analyses. Do you foresee any problems between the 

18 i n j e c t i o n water and the formation water i n t h i s zone? 

19 A. No, s i r . They're a l l very high i n c h l o r i d e s . 

20 TDS i s t y p i c a l l y over 100,000 p a r t s per m i l l i o n , so the 

21 waters are apparently compatible. 

22 Q. Your next e x h i b i t , E x h i b i t 3, i s a sundry 

23 n o t i c e . Did you take care of f i l i n g that? 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 Q. And why was t h a t f i l e d ? 
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1 A. Well, i t j u s t never had been done by the 

2 previous operator or Agua Sucia. And Mr. Carr pointed 

3 out t o me t h a t i t had never been f i l e d . And a f t e r 

4 f u r t h e r c o n s u l t a t i o n w i t h my c l i e n t , we f i n a l l y j u s t 

5 f i l e d the sundry i n preparing f o r these proceedings, went 

6 ahead and t r i e d t o make sure we had everything covered. 

7 Q. The next e x h i b i t i s E x h i b i t 5, which i s an 

8 i n v o i c e . Why was t h a t made an e x h i b i t ? The February 

9 '08 -- the one-page e x h i b i t . 

10 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, i n going through 

11 my e x h i b i t s yesterday, I r e a l i z e i t ' s a one-page e x h i b i t , 

12 an i n v o i c e . I thought I marked a l l the e x h i b i t s , but 

13 t h a t i s E x h i b i t 5. I don't know i f i t ' s marked i n your 

14 package. 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t i s . 

16 MR. BRUCE: Invoice from --

1.7 THE WITNESS: T r i p l e N Services. 

18 MR. BRUCE: That should be marked E x h i b i t 

19 5. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mine i s . 

21 MR. BRUCE: Maybe I j u s t missed mine. I 

22 wanted t o make sure they were p r o p e r l y marked. 

23 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Stone, you t e s t i f i e d i n 

24 the f i r s t hearing i n t h i s matter? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. And you sat through Armstrong's testimony? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. Did they ask questions of Agua Sucia's 

4 witnesses i f t h e r e was any evidence of what was done on 

5 the February '08 completion -- or r e p a i r attempts? 

6 A. They d i d . They p o i n t e d out t h a t since the 

7 follow-up sundry had not been submitted, perhaps the work 

8 may not have been done or at l e a s t p r o p e r l y reported. 

9 At the time, what we had a v a i l a b l e on the 

10 f i r s t r e p a i r attempt from Mr. Edgett's f i e l d notes t h a t I 

11 paraphrased i n t o the f i r s t r e p a i r attempt and what we've 

12 been able t o come up w i t h i s the T r i p l e N data a c t i v i t y 

13 f i e l d t i c k e t . And the d e s c r i p t i o n of services there 

14 describes, i n c l u d i n g the volumes, matching up w i t h what 

15 Mr. Edgett provided, s u b s t a n t i a t e s e v e r y t h i n g t h a t he had 

16 sai d had occurred on the r e p a i r . 

17 Q. So t h i s i s simply submitted t o show t h a t 

18 r e p a i r work was attempted i n February of '08 --

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. -- by Louray. 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Mr. Stone, l e t ' s move on t o your E x h i b i t 6, 

23 which i s marked "Sample SWD w e l l c o n f i g u r a t i o n . " 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 Q. Could you i d e n t i f y t h i s e x h i b i t and discuss 
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i i t s contents f o r the Commissioners? 

2 A. Again, i n p r e p a r a t i o n f o r these proceedings 

3 today, I wanted t o take a look at t y p i c a l s a l t w a t e r 

4 disposal w e l l c o n f i g u r a t i o n s t h a t are r o u t i n e l y approved 

5 by the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . So I got on OCD 

6 o n l i n e . I looked through three or f o u r dozen records, 

7 and obviously there's d i f f e r e n t c r i t e r i a t o d i f f e r e n t 

8 w e l l s and such i n the area of review. 

9 I d i d n ' t f i l t e r -- use anything more than j u s t 

10 l o o k i n g at some zones and, i n p a r t i c u l a r , the amount of 

11 cement i s o l a t i o n above the i n j e c t i o n zone. I 

13 f i r s t example i s OCD Permit 572, issued i n 1994. I t 

14 shows the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l t o be 650 f e e t long, and 

15 t h a t ' s i l l u s t r a t e d i n the blue shading on the small 

16 wellbore diagram. And the i s o l a t i o n , the cement 

17 i s o l a t i o n behind the pipe and above t h a t zone i s 

18 approximately 374 f e e t . That's i n d i c a t e d by the pink 

19 shading. 

20 Example Number 2 i s OCD Permit SWD 896, issued 

21 i n 2003. The i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l i s 1,225 f e e t long. The 

22 cement i s o l a t i o n -- I t h i n k the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l i s 675 

23 f e e t , again i l l u s t r a t e d by the blue and pink shading. 

24 Example Number 3, OCD Permit SWD 1237, issued 

25 8/2010. The i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l i s 1,769 f e e t i n length, 

12 So i f you a l l have t h a t e x h i b i t t here, the 
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1 i s o l a t e d by 519 f e e t of cement above t h a t i n t e r v a l . 

2 Example Number 4, SWD 1232, issued 7/30/2010. 

3 The i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l i s over 2,000 f e e t long, and i t ' s 

4 i s o l a t e d by 1,670 f e e t of cement. And I j u s t made a note 

5 here t h a t i t ' s d i f f i c u l t sometimes t o show on a complex 

6 wellbore e v e r y t h i n g i n the small confines of an 8 1/2 by 

7 14-inch paper, so the s c a l i n g gets o f f somewhere. 

8 But i t was i n t e r e s t i n g t o note t h a t the blue 

9 shading represents the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l , and t h a t ' s 

10 2,130 f e e t long. And above t h a t , about an inch of pink 

11 shading represents the 1,670 f e e t of cement i s o l a t i o n 

12 behind i t . 

13 So sometimes j u s t l o o k i n g at how a wellbore i s 

14 i l l u s t r a t e d , you r e a l l y need t o look at depths and see 

15 e x a c t l y what we'fe l o o k i n g a t . I j u s t wanted t o p o i n t 

16 t h a t out. 

17 On Example Number 5, SWD 1203, issued 

18 1/27/10, the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l i s 1,275 f e e t , i s o l a t e d 

19 by 650 f e e t of cement. 

20 F i n a l l y , Example Number 6, OCD Permit SWD 754, 

21 issued 8/30/1999, 1,152 f e e t , i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l , 

22 i s o l a t e d by 485 f e e t . 

23 Again, these were selected randomly. 

24 Obviously, there were some wellbores i n the r e , some 

25 s a l t w a t e r disposal w e l l s t h a t have been p e r m i t t e d t h a t 
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1 are f u l l y cemented top t o bottom, a l l three s t r i n g s , and 

2 they're w e l l constructed. But these are t y p i c a l of 

3 t h i n g s t h a t have r o u t i n e l y been approved throughout the 

4 years by OCD. 

5 The next page I have lab e l e d as " I l l u s t r a t i o n 

6 Number 1," c a l l e d the "Generic SWD Con f i g u r a t i o n . " I f 

7 you look at t h a t , we've got again shaded by blue, 500 

8 f e e t of p e r f o r a t i o n s . Above t h a t , w e l l i s o l a t e d by the 

9 pink, we've got 5,700 f e e t of cement. 

10 So I would propose t h a t i f myself and Mr. Carr 

11 and the Commissioners decided t o form a sa l t w a t e r 

12 d i s p o s a l company tomorrow, we'd be r a t h e r e x c i t e d t o f i n d 

13 t h i s as a candidate w e l l . This i s something t h a t would 

14 appear t o be w e l l s u i t e d f o r d i s p o s a l purposes. 

15 I f you take a look a t t h i s c o n f i g u r a t i o n and 

16 then t u r n the page t o I l l u s t r a t i o n 2, a l l I changed 

17 between those two i l l u s t r a t i o n s i s the i n s e r t i o n of the 

18 f o u r - i n c h l i n e r which we i n s t a l l e d i n t h i s w e l l , t h a t ' s 

19 then f u l l y cemented. So t h a t ' s where our cement 

20 i s o l a t i o n comes from. 

21 The o r i g i n a l p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g i s i s o l a t e d by 

22 over 2,000 f e e t of cement coming up and i d e n t i f i e d by a 

23 temperature survey w i t h a top of 7,700 f e e t . So we've 

24 got over 2,000 f e e t of cement i s o l a t i o n above our 

25 i n j e c t i o n zone outside the o r i g i n a l production casing 
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1 which was damaged, but r e p a i r e d by the f o u r - i n c h l i n e r , 

2 which i s f u l l y cemented 5,700 f e e t long. 

3 So again, i n e f f e c t , what we have i s our 

4 c o n s t r u c t i o n i l l u s t r a t e d on I l l u s t r a t i o n Number 1 as f a r 

5 as the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l and c o n f i n i n g the cement sheath 

6 above t h a t . 

7 Q. Does t h i s show t h a t the Government E i s --

8 t h a t the c o n f i g u r a t i o n of Government E i s at l e a s t as 

9 good as these other examples you used? 

10 A. Looking at the other examples, i t appears t o 

11 f a r exceed what has been r o u t i n e l y approved. 

12 Q. Let's sk i p forward t o E x h i b i t 9, which i s the 

13 p l o t you have i n f r o n t of you. Please i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r 

14 the Commissioner. 

15 A. This i s a r a d i a l bond l o g t h a t Agua Sucia had 

16 run i n J u l y of t h i s year. And i n again preparing and 

17 t r y i n g t o i d e n t i f y other t o o l s or methods whereby we 

18 might be able t o demonstrate t o the Commission t h a t our 

19 w e l l i s a p p r o p r i a t e l y r e p a i r e d , our engineer, Robert Lee, 

20 suggested t h a t we go ahead and run a bond l o g t o see 

21 e x a c t l y what we've done behind the l i n e r and anywhere 

22 else t h a t we can i d e n t i f y behind the pipe. 

23 So t h i s i s a r e c e n t l y run bond l o g t h a t shows 

24 good bond throughout. We've got several copies around 

25 the room, but I don't know how best t o run through t h i s 
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1 p a r t i c u l a r e x h i b i t w i thout people g e t t i n g l o s t q u i c k l y . 

2 Q. With the Commission's permission, i f there i s 

3 something you'd l i k e t o p o i n t out, could you f l i p t o t h a t 

4 p a r t i c u l a r page or t h a t f o l d , and make sure you i d e n t i f y 

5 i t f o r Mr. Carr? And i f you need t o p o i n t out something 

6 f o r the Commissioners, could you do that? 

7 A. I could do t h a t . 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: May I c l a r i f y 

9 something? The four-and-a-half i n c h -- or the f o u r - i n c h 

10 f l u s h j o i n t l i n e r and the five-and-a-half inch o l d 

11 casing, the cement bond l o g t h a t we're l o o k i n g at here i s 

12 a cement bond on the l i n e r ; r i g h t ? 

13 THE WITNESS: I t i s . 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And the l i n e r i s 

15 cemented back t o t i e back t o the next s t r i n g on? 

16 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But the s t r i n g t h a t 

18 i t ' s i n s i d e , i t ' s the five-and-a-half? 

19 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That's where we have 

21 the cement problem, i s n ' t i t ? 

22 THE WITNESS: Right. 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would t h i s cement bond 

24 l o g show t h a t cement i n t e r v a l ? 

25 THE WITNESS: A c t u a l l y , i n many cases, i t 
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1 does. That's why i t ' s d i f f i c u l t t o j u s t p i c k a depth and 

2 say, f o r instance, because i t ' s something t h a t you need 

3 t o k i n d of look a t t y p i c a l l y coming from bottom, coming 

4 up the hole. I would say j u s t q u i c k l y t h a t t h i s i s 

5 d i f f i c u l t t o do. 

6 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, i f i t ' s 

7 pe r m i s s i b l e f o r the witness t o approach the 

8 Commissioners' t a b l e t o p o i n t out c e r t a i n items, 

9 c e r t a i n l y Mr. Carr could go there and see what he's look 

10 a t , or Mr. Carr's witness. 

11 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, would you be 

12 adverse t o that ? 

13 MR. CARR: No, i f we can come up. 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we r e l a x the 

15 r u l e s f o r a few minutes and l e t him show us the cement 

16 bond l o g , and Mr. Carr and h i s witness. 

17 THE WITNESS: Just q u i c k l y , so y o u ' l l have 

18 some references t o what we're l o o k i n g a t , cement bond 

19 logs have changed q u i t e d r a m a t i c a l l y over the years, but 

20 i t ' s s t i l l the same fundamental type l o g . I t ' s a sonic 

21 l o g t h a t ' s conducted where a pi n g i s sent out and 

22 received. So t h a t p i n g t r a v e l s through whatever f l u i d i s 

23 i n the wellbo r e , t r a v e l s through the casing, cement 

24 sheath, and depending on the amplitude i t ' s returned f o r 

25 t r a v e l time, e t cetera, we can determine l o t s of t h i n g s . 
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1 So we've got several d i f f e r e n t curves here. 

2 But I ' d p o i n t out t h a t h i s t o r i c a l l y , bond logs, since 

3 they've been run f o r the l a s t 50, 60 years, t h i s dark 

4 l i n e here, t h i s l i n e r i g h t here, t h i s i s the amplitude. 

5 And we, f o r years, have r e l i e d on t h a t and o f t e n l a b e l 

6 t h i s t r a c k as the bond index. 

7 So i f we were coming t h i s d i r e c t i o n i n t h i s 

8 t r a c k , we would have a bond index of zero coming t o one. 

9 So any place t h a t t h i s l i n e f a l l s close t o here would 

10 i n d i c a t e -- and again, t h i s i s very basic, without 

11 g e t t i n g i n t o some of the other curves and other data and 

12 i n f o r m a t i o n we have a v a i l a b l e here. But t h i s would 

13 i n d i c a t e good bond.. 

14 As a matter of f a c t , most logging companies or 

15 anyone would profess t o you t h a t a bond index of .8 or 

16 greater means t h a t i n these two char t d i v i s i o n s , we would 

17 have good bond. So j u s t q u i c k l y , j u s t running through 

18 here, t h i s shows p r e t t y good bond a l l the way through 

19 here. 

20 What we have from the r a d i a l bond l o g , we have 

21 e i g h t r e c e i v e r s or microphones t h a t are p i c k i n g up t h a t 

22 s i g n a l t h a t ' s returned. They're arranged i n 45-degree 

23 increments around. So you've got e i g h t r e c e i v e r s 

24 d i s t r i b u t e d around t h a t t o o l . 

25 So what we have here, these colored l i n e s , are 
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1 i n d i v i d u a l l y represented f o r those e i g h t r e c e i v e r s there. 

2 So we a c t u a l l y are l o o k i n g a t g e t t i n g t h a t p i c t u r e back. 

3 This i s then e l e c t r o n i c a l l y turned back i n t o what -- t h i s 

4 f i n a l t r a c k here i s c a l l e d a cement map. I f you would, 

5 imagine t h i s i s a 360-degree p i c t u r e of t h a t casing from 

6 the i n s i d e , unfolded. So t h i s i s everything outside t h a t 

7 pipe, unfolded. 

8 So t h i s extremely b o r i n g black s e c t i o n here, 

9 we've got t h i s bond coming through here. I t appears t h a t 

10 a l l through our f o u r - i n c h casing -- f o u r - i n c h l i n e r , we 

11 have very, very good bond. And please stop me i f I need 

12 t o c l a r i f y anything e l s e . 

13 Now, there are some instances through here, 

14 f o r instance r i g h t here, where t h i s apparently -- you 

15 would say -- w e l l t y p i c a l l y , i f t h i s i s a l l we have i s 

16 the o l d bond l o g from 30 or 40 years ago, you'd say, 

17 "Well, there's a s e c t i o n of bad bond r i g h t there." 

18 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) What depths are you t a l k i n g 

19 about? 

20 A. This p a r t i c u l a r one i s 8,420 f e e t . But j u s t 

21 as an example, some o f these - - what we can do then i s 

22 look a t these o the r e i g h t curves and see t h a t same t h i n g . 

23 We're s t i l l - - b y these e i g h t curves , we ' re s t i l l 

24 measuring i n t h a t ampl i tude , same d i r e c t i o n , same 

25 c o n f i g u r a t i o n here, t h a t we ' re showing good bond. So 
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1 there's something else a f f e c t i n g t h a t stop r e c e i v e r on 

2 the t o o l t h a t ' s i n d i c a t i n g something else i s going on. 

3 Then we have t o come over t o the VDL, v a r i a b l e 

4 d e n s i t y p o r t i o n , and see what else i s happening here. 

5 And what we can t e l l i s undoubtedly, since we've got good 

6 bond i n d i c a t e d by our eight r a d i a l d i s t r i b u t i o n 

7 r e c e i v e r s , t h a t we perhaps have very f a s t formation here, 

8 something very t i g h t , 1 or 2 percent p o r o s i t y , something 

9 l i k e t h a t . 

10 Imagine, i f you w i l l , a pipe or a glass even, 

11 t h a t i f you were t o take t h a t empty glass and h i t i t w i t h 

12 your f i n g e r , i f you could r i n g i t . We a c t u a l l y r e f e r t o 

13 r i n g i n g pipe on a bond l o g , j u s t sending out t h a t pulse 

14 t h a t we're d e t e c t i n g . So i f you r i n g t h a t empty glass, 

15 you get a r i n g . This i s the type of t h i n g we look f o r . 

16 I f you put your f i n g e r s around t h a t glass and 

17 t r y i t , y o u ' l l dampen i t . You change the amplitude t h a t 

18 you're measuring. You change the t r a v e l time. So these 

19 are the t h i n g s t h a t we're l o o k i n g a t , t h a t we're able t o 

2 0 i d e n t i f y and i n t e r p r e t i n t o some k i n d of bond l o g . 

21 I would p o i n t out coming up the hole t h a t our 

2 2 temperature survey, they look very good and clean a l l the 

23 way up t o about 7,700 f e e t . I would p o i n t out t h a t t h i s 

24 i s where the o r i g i n a l temperature survey, when i t was 

25 only the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f inch pipe t h a t was cemented i n 
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1 the hole, t h a t ' s where i t would show the top of the 

2 cement. This i s where we s t a r t seeing some p r e t t y junky 

3 s t u f f , some sparse contaminated cement and other t h i n g s 

4 t h a t have f a l l e n i n t h e r e . 

5 We never cemented t h i s . We never squeezed 

6 t h i s through the years o r whatever. What we determined 

7 was t h a t , i n f a c t , the f i r s t r e p a i r attempt t h a t we d i d 

8 not at the time have good data on, as i t t u r n s out, 

9 pumped down the e i g h t and f i v e - e i g h t h s and 

10 f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f . We a c t u a l l y d i d move t h a t cement. That 

11 volume a c t u a l l y d i d pump down the hole here and stack up. 

12 Because we immediately get back i n -- before 

13 t h a t r e p a i r j o b and before the l i n e r , t h i s would have a l l 

14 been blank. This l i n e here would have been r i n g i n g over 

15 here. We would have seen the c o l o r green because again, 

16 w i t h t h a t t i c k i n g noise t h a t would emanate from the t o o l , 

17 you'd a c t u a l l y see t h a t c o l o r range. So you can t e l l 

18 when you're i n f r e e pipe, where there's nothing bonding 

19 behind t h a t pipe. 

2 0 As we come up here and we get through some of 

21 the junk i s where t h a t t r a n s i t i o n takes place from where 

22 the o l d cement j o b was, the new cement being pumped down 

23 through the top, globbing up down here, but f i n a l l y 

24 accumulating and s t a r t i n g t o stack, and we s t a r t 

25 r e - e s t a b l i s h i n g bond again. 
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1 I t i s k i n d of sp o t t y . And you can see on t h i s 

2 map, by these colored areas, we've got spots, but we do 

3 have e x c e l l e n t bond a l l the way up through here. We've 

4 got some s p o t t y t r a n s i t i o n areas. 

5 We see the new cement j o b t h a t we pumped from 

6 the f i r s t r e p a i r coming i n here. There's s t i l l some 

7 spots, but nothing t h a t we're going t o move f l u i d 

8 through. These l i t t l e spots here, i f you can imagine 

9 again i t ' s a 360-degree p i c t u r e . We've j u s t got a l i t t l e 

10 v o i d s i t t i n g there on the side of the pipe, so we s t i l l 

11 don't have anything whereby we can t r a n s f e r f l u i d up or 

12 channel behind t h a t pipe. 

13 Coming up here t o the o r i g i n a l zone t h a t we 

14 d i d i d e n t i f y before we had some bad pipe, we can see 

15 th i n g s get very c o l o r f u l and very s p o t t y . This i s 

16 g e t t i n g up i n t h a t i n t e r v a l from 4,800, 4,700 f e e t or so 

17 down t o 5,300 f e e t . Generally, t h a t i n t e r v a l where we 

18 i d e n t i f i e d there was a plug and packer, t h a t we d i d have 

19 some bad product, r o t t e n casing i n there. And t h a t ' s 

2 0 what they were attempting t o r e p a i r . 

21 But what's i n t e r e s t i n g here i s t h a t we are 

22 a c t u a l l y s t a r t i n g t o see bond. So we've got good bond 

23 around our f o u r - i n c h out t o the five - a n d - a - h a l f inch 

24 pipe. So as we send t h a t p i ng out, we've got something 

25 now t o conduct and t r a n s f e r t h a t sound wave energy 
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1 through the pipe, through the cement, back, and be 

2 received. 

3 And the reason we can t e l l t h a t i s on some of 

4 these here, i f we look on t h i s VDL, and -- i f you a l l 

5 would l i k e t o know what the VDL i s , I can describe t h a t 

6 also. Quickly, i t ' s j u s t a stretched-out p i c t u r e of the 

7 o s c i l l o s c o p e wave form t h a t ' s being r e t u r n e d from the 

8 t o o l . 

9 But what we see on here, we see these l i t t l e 

10 t i c k marks t h a t come i n every so o f t e n , about 40 f e e t or 

11 so through here, those don't l i n e up w i t h our f o u r - i n c h 

12 i n s i d e . 

13 The only way we could see those would be 

14 c o l o r s on the out s i d e . The only way we would be able t o 

15 see those c o l o r s on the outside i s t o have good cement 

16 there t o send t h a t p i ng through and conduct t h a t sonic 

17 energy through and have i t returned and be able t o 

18 i d e n t i f y something on the outside of t h a t pipe. 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What does t h a t t e l l us 

20 about the cement outside the five-and-a-half? 

21 THE WITNESS: We don't know a l o t about 

22 the cement outside the f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f . 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We've got a r e a l 

24 good -- t h i s shows us t h a t we've got a good bond between 

25 the l i n e r and the casing and the hole? 
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1 THE WITNESS: Right. 

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But the problem appears 

3 t o be, doesn't i t , t h a t i t ' s the cement j o b outside of 

4 t h a t --

5 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: -- five-and-a-half? 

7 THE WITNESS: Again, Mr. Chairman, we've 

8 e s t a b l i s h e d t h a t we had a good 2,000 f e e t plus i s o l a t i o n 

9 when the w e l l was o r i g i n a l l y cemented. We had our issue 

10 here when the casing r o t t e d out i n t h a t i n t e r v a l , 

11 apparently across t h a t Queen i n t e r v a l , but we sealed t h a t 

12 o f f w i t h the l i n e r . 

13 So again, from the Bone Spring up, we've got 

14 good cement i s o l a t i o n behind the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f . We've 

15 never demonstrated otherwise, t h a t we don't have good 

16 cement i s o l a t i o n behind t h a t f i v e -and-a-half pipe 

17 o r i g i n a l l y . 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So your testimony i s 

19 t h a t t h i s l o g , where i t ' s got good cement between the 

20 l i n e r and the f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f , also shows good cement 

21 between the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f and the formation; r i g h t ? I s 

22 t h a t what you're t e l l i n g us t h a t 2,000 f e e t of good 

23 cement down there is? 

24 THE WITNESS: No, s i r , we don't see t h a t 

25 so much. We don't see t h a t so much. 
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1 Again, down here i n s i d e the pipe, we can 

2 see -- again, we can see through because of t h a t good 

3 cement sheath between the f o u r inch and the 

4 f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f , we can see some things happening. We 

5 are s t i l l t r a n s m i t t i n g t h a t sound out. 

6 I f there was nothing there, we wouldn't get 

7 t h a t r e t u r n s i g n a l . We're g e t t i n g t h a t , so we know we 

8 made contact through the cement t o be able the r e t u r n 

9 t h a t s i g n a l . So we know t h a t we've got cement down 

10 there. We know we 

11 had --

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You know you've got 

13 cement between the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f and the formation? 

14 THE WITNESS: Just from the o r i g i n a l 

15 temperature survey and i d e n t i f y i n g the cement type. 

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So what t h i s l o g i s 

17 t e l l i n g us i s t h a t we've got good cement between the 

18 l i n e r and the f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f ; r i g h t ? 

19 THE WITNESS: Right. And we can see the 

20 fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f also has some k i n d of bond behind i t . We 

21 can't put a q u a l i t a t i v e a n a l y s i s on t h a t . We can simply 

22 see t h a t we've got enough bond w i t h the pipe s t r i n g s 

23 there t h a t we're a c t u a l l y sending t h a t s i g n a l out and 

24 g e t t i n g a r e t u r n . But we can't put a q u a l i t a t i v e 

25 a n a l y s i s on t h a t . We can only see t h a t we're making t h a t 
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1 contact. But again --

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: To you, t h a t ' s not a 

3 good bond between the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f and the formation? 

4 That doesn't represent a good bond between the 

5 fiv e - a n d - a - h a l f and the formation? 

6 THE WITNESS: We don't know. 

7 But again, t h a t ' s not what we're logging f o r , 

8 being i n s i d e t h a t pipe. You c a l i b r a t e your t o o l s f o r 

9 what pipe you're i n . We only had the v i r t u e of being 

10 able t o see t h a t we had made contact. We have the 

11 o r i g i n a l temperature survey showing t h a t we had a cement 

12 sheath up behind there from the o r i g i n a l cement j o b , but 

13 there was never a bond l o g run t o i d e n t i f y what bond we 

14 might have had o r i g i n a l l y . 

1.5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I haven't heard 

16 Armstrong's testimony. But i f I understand the documents 

17 t h a t were f i l e d , the question i s whether or not we have 

18 s u f f i c i e n t bond between the fiv e - a n d - a - h a l f t o keep the 

19 i n j e c t i o n f l u i d s from channeling up i n t o t h e i r pay zone? 

20 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Does t h i s t e l l us that? 

22 THE WITNESS: No, s i r . That's never been 

23 questioned on w e l l s t h a t the OCD r o u t i n e l y permits. 

24 Seldom i s an a p p l i c a n t requested t o submit a bond l o g as 

25 evidence t h a t t h e i r cement sheath i s good. 
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1 T y p i c a l l y , i f you cement the pipe, you're 

2 assuming you've got a well-designed cement job, which 

3 most of them now are, obviously. You assume you've got 

4 t h a t . You run a temperature survey. 

5 Frequently, we only c a l c u l a t e t h a t cement top. 

6 But c e r t a i n l y the OCD very seldom -- unless there's some 

7 other circumstance t h a t would cause them t o request t h a t 

8 i n f o r m a t i o n --

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Like an o f f s e t operator 

10 complaining of a f l o w i n there on the pay zone? 

11 THE WITNESS: Right. Or maybe even the 

12 OCD reviewer l o o k i n g at i t and having a question about 

13 the same t h i n g . But again, i t s i n t e r e s t i n g t o note t h a t 

1.4 we see t h i s t r a n s i t i o n at 7,700 f e e t . 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Which i s --

16 THE WITNESS: The o r i g i n a l t r a n s i t i o n 

17 temperature survey i n d i c a t e d t h a t the o r i g i n a l 

18 f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f cement j o b was out here, and we see t h i s 

19 t r a n s i t i o n r i g h t i n t h a t area. 

20 So at l e a s t from t h i s l o g , again l o o k i n g 

21 through two s t r i n g s of pipe and t h a t cement, we're seeing 

22 t h a t we've got some connection through t h e r e . So we were 

23 a c t u a l l y q u i t e impressed w i t h the r e s u l t s of the l o g . 

24 Bond logg i n g i n a n u t s h e l l . 

2 5 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Stone, a couple more 
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1 items. We have E x h i b i t 7, which I t h i n k i s an in s p e c t i o n 

2 l o g . Could you discuss t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

3 A. I t was brought up at the o r i g i n a l hearing, 

4 during the testimony of Mr. Edgett, t h a t he had conducted 

5 a casing i n s p e c t i o n l o g , another type of l o g t h a t i s an 

6 electromagnetic l o g , t h a t o f f e r s some evidence of the 

7 c o n d i t i o n of the pipe. And so we can see p i t t i n g and 

8 s c a l i n g . And c e r t a i n l y i f there's a hole t h a t ' s corroded 

9 through the pipe or whatever, we can see some of those. 

10 Mr. Warnell, the Examiner f o r t h a t hearing, 

11 pointed out t h a t we were not able t o o f f e r t h a t l o g as an 

12 e x h i b i t . This i s the only copy we have. This i s the l o g 

13 t h a t Mr. Edgett was r e f e r r i n g t o . 

14 I t ' s a somewhat unremarkable l o g , even across 

15 the i n t e r v a l i n question; Across the Queen, i t j u s t 

16 looks very t y p i c a l of o l d casing w i t h some s c a l i n g and 

17 p i t t i n g and bui l d u p , but no s i g n i f i c a n t hole i s 

18 i n d i c a t e d . And even the logg i n g company makes t h a t note 

19 on t h e i r l o g , t h a t there's no evidence of -- there's no 

2 0 apparent holes. 

21 Q. Mr. Stone, you're t e s t i f y i n g about something, 

22 a l o g . When d i d you get a copy of that? 

23 A. I got t h i s the day before yesterday, as a 

24 matter of f a c t , two houses down, i n the r a i n . 

25 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, t h i s i s one l a t e 
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1 e x h i b i t . That was something t h a t was referenced i n the 

2 p r i o r order. Mr. Stone received i t Tuesday, and I've 

3 given t o i t Mr. Carr. I've marked i t Agua Sucia E x h i b i t 

4 18. Mr. Carr can have h i s o b j e c t i o n s . And there i s not 

5 a copy i n your f i l e because we d i d n ' t get i t . I d i d n ' t 

6 receive i t u n t i l yesterday. 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, would you 

8 l i k e t o take a minute t o look at i t ? 

9 MR. CARR: I don't t h i n k we have an 

10 o b j e c t i o n . I t ' s a 2001 l o g t h a t shows the c o n d i t i o n of 

11 the w e l l i n 2001. 

12 MR. BRUCE: I t was referenced i n the p r i o r 

13 order t h a t i t wasn't a v a i l a b l e . And Mr. Stone obtained 

14 the s i n g l e copy of the l o g Tuesday and --

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I don't t h i n k Mr. Carr 

16 i s going t o o b j e c t . 

17 MR. CARR: I don't o b j e c t . 

18 MR. BRUCE: Unf o r t u n a t e l y , there's only 

19 one copy. I marked t h a t 18, Agua Sucia E x h i b i t 18, 

20 Mr. Chairman. 

21 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Stone, t h e r e ' s something 

22 marked E x h i b i t 7, which i s - - what i s t ha t ? 

23 A. E x h i b i t 7 o r 18? 

24 Q. E x h i b i t 7. I ' m s o r r y . 

25 A. This i s a w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y r e p o r t 
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1 generated out of the risk-based data management system. 

2 Q. How d i d you o b t a i n that? 

3 A. I c a l l e d the Hobbs o f f i c e , and they were able 

4 t o provide t h i s f o r me. 

5 Q. What does t h a t r e f l e c t ? 

6 A. I t ' s a h i s t o r y of a l l the inspections 

7 conducted by OCD on the Government E l , and i t -- t h i s 

8 p a r t i c u l a r r e p o r t i n d i c a t e s t h a t 73 i n s p e c t i o n were 

9 conducted between February 1996 and January 2010. 

10 Q. I s i t r o u t i n e f o r the D i v i s i o n t o conduct w e l l 

11 inspections? 

12 A. Absolutely. 

13 Q. I s t h a t a l o t of inspections f o r one well? 

14 A. I t ' s q u i t e a la r g e number of ins p e c t i o n s . 

15 I t ' s not completely s u r p r i s i n g , the a t t e n t i o n t h a t t h i s 

16 w e l l garnered. But c e r t a i n l y they were paying close 

17 a t t e n t i o n t o t h i s w e l l f o r a number of years. 

18 Q. Were there any v i o l a t i o n s ? 

19 A. No v i o l a t i o n s -- a c t u a l l y , there i s one 

20 v i o l a t i o n i n here, but i t ' s not r e l a t e d t o the w e l l . I t 

21 i s r e l a t e d t o the p i t a t the time. I'm so r r y . I 

22 don't -- I believe t h a t was i n A p r i l of '09. I t says 

23 t h a t the workover p i t was open, l i n e r bad, et cetera, et 

24 cetera. So i t was -- the only v i o l a t i o n was r e l a t e d t o 

25 the p i t and not d i r e c t l y t o the w e l l or any operations. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 d 4-41 cb-a508-6b5f09e 1 a493 



Page 190 

1 Q. I've marked E x h i b i t s 8A through 8E, which are 

2 a number of assignments. Again, Mr. Stone, you sat 

3 through the f i r s t hearing; c o r r e c t ? 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. And Armstrong Energy or Mr. Armstrong himself 

6 t e s t i f i e d about the chain of t i t l e t o t h i s well? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. And are those e x h i b i t s merely submitted t o 

9 show a chain of t i t l e i n t o Agua Sucia, Dennis 

10 Schoenhofer's p r i n c i p a l or Agua Sucia regarding an 

11 i n t e r e s t i n the wellbore? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. And Agua Sucia only owns an i n t e r e s t i n the 

14 well b o r e ; c o r r e c t ? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . 

16 Q. To the best of your knowledge, i t doesn't own 

17 any o i l and gas working i n t e r e s t ? 

18 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. And i t s r i g h t s are l i m i t e d s o l e l y t o the r i g h t 

20 t o i n j e c t i n t o t h a t wellbore as t o c e r t a i n depths? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . 

22 Q. The o r i g i n a l owner of those r i g h t s was 

23 Armstrong Energy; was i t not? 

24 A. I be l i e v e so. 

25 Q. Has there been any i n j e c t i o n i n t o the 
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1 Government E Well No. 1 since January '08? 

2 A. No, s i r . 

3 Q. There i s a c t i v i t y a t t h a t w e l l s i t e ; i s there 

4 not? 

5 A. They do r o u t i n e l y take water i n . I t ' s trucked 

6 i n t o the s i t e -- i t ' s a larg e f a c i l i t y -- main tanks t o 

7 accommodate incoming waters and separating out and such. 

8 So yes, they take water i n , skim o i l , move water over t o 

9 a w a t e r f l o o d . So yeah, there are d a i l y operations going 

10 on. 

11 Q. That complies w i t h D i v i s i o n r e g u l a t i o n s ; does 

12 i t not? 

13 A. I b e l i e v e so. 

14 Q. One f i n a l matter. I s there a way -- i s there 

15 a method through various surveys t o v e r i f y the i n t e g r i t y 

16 of the Government El wellbore? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . My recommendation and many others 

18 would suggest running a r a d i o a c t i v e t r a c e r i n combination 

19 w i t h temperature. This would i d e n t i f y not only the e x i t 

20 of the f l u i d from the wellbore, but the t r a c e r m a t e r i a l 

21 as i t t r a v e l s outside the pipe t o a depth of about 18 

22 inches or so, and locat e t h a t r a d i o a c t i v e m a t e r i a l and 

23 watch i t behind the pipe, behind the cement. 

24 To answer the Chairman's question, we could 

25 i d e n t i f y f l u i d movement using t h a t method, anything t h a t 
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1 t r a v e l e d up immediately outside the wellbore. You add t o 

2 t h a t the combination of a temperature survey, and any 

3 time t h a t you pump a f l u i d i n t o a wellbore, you're going 

4 t o r e t a r d the geothermal gradient of t h a t w e l l . I n other 

5 words, you have whatever your ambient temperature i s at 

6 the --

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You could have j u s t 

8 said, "cool i t down." 

9 THE WITNESS: Geothermal i s an important 

10 t h i n g t h a t we've got t o look a t . So we're going t o cool 

11 down t h a t temperature, but you don't always cool i t down. 

12 I f you ou pump a c i d sometimes i n a shallow w e l l , y o u ' l l 

13 heat i t up. 

14 Nonetheless, i f you would imagine t h a t 

15 anything you do, any f l u i d movement t h a t you do, anything 

16 you i n j e c t i n , anything t h a t moves up behind t h a t pipe i s 

17 going t o r e t a r d t h a t temperature back up, the geothermal 

18 g r a d i e n t . 

19 Whatever volume you have, f o r instance, a 

2 0 channel s k i r t i n g up the outside of the pipe, you haven't 

21 moved a l o t of volume of water. So i t i n i t i a l l y r e t a r d s 

22 t h a t temperature, but i t recovers q u i c k l y . 

23 Wherever t h a t f l u i d i s being i n j e c t e d , you can 

24 do some type of q u a l i t a t i v e a n a l y s i s i n t h a t you've got a 

25 body, a r e s e r v o i r f l u i d , i f you w i l l , s i t t i n g out there, 
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1 and i t takes a long, long time f o r t h a t t o decay out and 

2 recover i t s o r i g i n a l geothermal g r a d i e n t . 

3 So wherever our water i s going -- and t h i s i s 

4 a commonly-used t o o l , i t has been f o r decades -- you can 

5 i d e n t i f y by decaying t h a t out. And sometimes you decay 

6 t h a t out f o r 24 or 4 8 hours, and you can see those 

7 volumes of f l u i d , those bodies of f l u i d t h a t have been 

8 l e f t behind i n the r e s e r v o i r . 

9 So i t ' s a valuable t o o l , and i t ' s e s s e n t i a l 

10 t h a t i t ' s run i n combination. We made an o f f e r t o run 

11 t h a t , and t h a t o f f e r c e r t a i n l y stands. We would be happy 

12 t o -- we'd be pleased t o be able t o i n j e c t i n the w e l l 

13 and be able t o conduct t h a t t e s t t o demonstrate t h a t we 

14 have i n t e g r i t y around the w e l l . 

15 Q. Would the r e s u l t s of those t e s t s show p r e t t y 

16 q u i c k l y whether or not the wellbore has mechanical 

17 i n t e g r i t y ? 

18 A. Absolutely. I t ' s a r e a l - t i m e s i t u a t i o n . When 

19 you i n j e c t i n t o i t , g e n e r a l l y the channel -- y o u ' l l see 

20 i t t u r n t h a t corner i n a matter of seconds. You can 

21 a c t u a l l y watch i t over one minute, two minutes, f i v e 

22 minutes or ten minutes, and you can a c t u a l l y -- depending 

23 on the s e v e r i t y of the channel, you can determine the 

24 height, back t h a t up w i t h the temperature of decay curves 

25 t h a t you run, and you can put some s o r t of q u a l i t a t i v e 
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1 a nalysis on how you've impacted t h a t and where your f l u i d 

2 loss i s . 

3 Q. I f the t e s t s show there was movement of f l u i d , 

4 Agua Sucia would have t o shut i t down; would i t not? 

5 A. Abs o l u t e l y . 

6 Q. But i f i t shows the other way, shows t h a t the 

7 mechanical i n t e g r i t y of the wellbore i s sound, then i t 

8 should be allowed t o i n j e c t ? 

9 A. I b e l i e v e so. 

10 Q. Mr. Stone, were E x h i b i t s 1 through 9 and 18 

11 prepared by you and under your s u p e r v i s i o n or compiled 

12 from company business records? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . 

14 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

15 a p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 

16 prevention of waste? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman I tender the 

19 admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 9 and 18. 

2 0 MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t s 1 through 9 

22 and 18 are admitted i n t o the record. 

23 (Agua Sucia E x h i b i t s 1 through 9 and 18 were admitted.) 

24 MR. BRUCE: I pass the witness. 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr? 
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1 MR. CARR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. CARR: 

4 Q. Mr. Stone, when were you o r i g i n a l l y h i r e d t o 

5 work on t h i s well? 

6 A. A p r i l of 2009. 

7 Q. At the time you were h i r e d , were you aware 

8 t h a t the i n j e c t i o n a u t h o r i t y had already lapsed? 

9 A. Yes. They h i r e d me t o r e i n s t a t e t h a t 

10 a u t h o r i t y . 

11 Q. Were you aware at t h a t time t h a t there had 

12 been remedial work taken on the well? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . 

14 Q. You were not in v o l v e d a t the time or advising 

15 anyone on the k i n d of remedial a c t i v i t y t o undertake? 

16 A. No, s i r . 

17 Q. You were o r i g i n a l l y employed by who? 

18 A. I was o r i g i n a l l y employed by Louray. 

19 Q. At the time you were employed, d i d you have 
20 any understanding about the ownership of the wellbore? j 

21 Did you understand that Louray only owned the wellbore, \ 

22 not the minerals? ] 

23 A. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. And you were aware t h a t there were the 

25 l i m i t a t i o n s under the assignment t h a t Mr. Bruce reviewed? ; 
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Yes, s i r . 

2 Q. You prepared the C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n s as they 

3 r e l a t e t o t h i s well? 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. You prepared an i n i t i a l one f o r Louray? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. What i n f o r m a t i o n d i d have you at your disposal 

8 when you prepared th a t ? 

9 A. The o r i g i n a l one? 

10 Q. Yes, s i r . 

11 A. I had c e r t a i n l y what's a v a i l a b l e o n l i n e 

12 through OCD o n l i n e and whatever i n f o r m a t i o n I c o l l e c t e d 

13 from Mr. Edgett, whatever depths, p e r f o r a t i o n s , cement 

14 volumes, et cetera. 

15 Q. Did you also receive i n f o r m a t i o n from Mr. A l 

16 Perry? 

17 A. Not d i r e c t l y , no, s i r . 

18 Q. Were you aware of the p r i o r problems w i t h the 

19 w e l l at the time you s t a r t e d t o prepare the C-108? 

2 0 A. No, s i r . 

21 Q. When you s t a r t e d working on t h i s , d i d you 

22 discover evidence of problems w i t h the well? 

23 A. C e r t a i n l y as I prepared the n a r r a t i v e s about 

24 the r e p a i r attempts, i t became q u i t e obvious, yeah, t h a t 

25 they had serious concerns, serious damage t o the pipe f o r 
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several hundred f e e t , whatever t h a t was. 

2 Q- Were you able t o see damage t o the casing? 

3 A. Able t o see i t ? 

4 Q. Um-hum. Were you aware of i t as you worked 

5 through t h i s problem i n i t i a l l y ? 

6 A. I was aware of i t by v i r t u e of t h e i r a c t u a l l y 

7 using the plug and packer method t o i d e n t i f y t h a t s e c t i o n 

8 of pipe. 

9 Q. Do you have an o p i n i o n on the status of the 

10 wellbore p r i o r t o the time i t was shut i n i n 2008? 

11 A. P r i o r t o the time t h a t i t was shut i n , nothing 

12 occurred t o me. 

13 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , was the casing sound? Was 

14 the wellbore sound at t h a t time? 

15 A. I don't r e c a l l w i thout having looked at the 

16 mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t dates t h a t were conducted. 

17 Q. Are you saying you don't know? 

18 A. I don't know. 

19 Q. I s i t your testimony t h a t the wellbore i s 

20 sound now? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . 

22 Q. Do you have an o p i n i o n on what caused the 

23 waterflows i n the o f f s e t t i n g p r o p e r t i e s , i n the 

24 o f f s e t t i n g wells? 

25 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t i n i t i a l l y -- I b e l i e v e we've 
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1 got some waterflow through the Queen. I be l i e v e we've 

2 got some impact from the o f f s e t t i n g w a t e r f l o o d u n i t . And 

3 I t h i n k a t whatever p o i n t t h a t our casing and apparently 

4 the t u b i n g i n the Government El d i d f a i l , t h a t apparently 

5 we d i d i n j e c t water d i r e c t l y i n t o the Queens. 

6 I would say i t was a combination e f f e c t of the 

7 o f f s e t t i n g w a t e r f l o o d and our w e l l and whatever n a t u r a l 

8 waterflow we have i n the Queen through t h a t i n t e r v a l . 

9 Q. You t e s t i f i e d today t h a t the wellbore today, 

10 i n your o p i n i o n , i s sound and ready t o use f o r i n j e c t i o n ? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 Q. Did you look beyond the wellbore i t s e l f f o r 

13 causes of waterfloods i n o f f s e t t i n g wells? 

14 A. Most of t h a t research was done by our 

15 engineer, Mr. Lee. I d i d i d e n t i f y on an o l d BLM -- and I 

16 don't r e c a l l i f i t was the sundry or the attachment t o 

17 the APD t h a t they ran i n t o d r i l l i n g an o f f s e t w e l l i n 

18 the area. I f you r e c a l l t h a t form I'm t a l k i n g about, i t 

19 has a s e c t i o n f o r s i g n i f i c a n t o i l zones, s i g n i f i c a n t 

20 water zones. 

21 The s i g n i f i c a n t water zones on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

22 form are u s u a l l y f i l l e d i n one out of 10 times. I found 

23 a w e l l w i t h those exact i n t e r v a l s approximately across 

24 the Queen where i n d r i l l i n g t h a t w e l l , they took the time 

25 t o i n d i c a t e s i g n i f i c a n t water zones had been reached at 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 d 4-41 cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 



Page 199 

1 those depths. So I bel i e v e there was some n a t u r a l 

2 waterflow across t h a t i n t e r v a l . 

3 Q. At the Examiner Hearing, you t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

4 you d i d n ' t do any in-depth a n a l y s i s from a g e o l o g i c a l 

5 perspective or otherwise; i s t h a t true? 

6 A. That's t r u e . 

7 Q. So are you here today t e s t i f y i n g about the 

8 i n t e g r i t y of the formation outside the wellbore? 

9 A. No, s i r . I'm j u s t t e l l i n g you about the form 

10 where I saw t h a t the s i g n i f i c a n t water zone had been 

11 reached --

12 Q. You're not here saying t h a t you have examined 

13 beyond the wellbore t o determine whether i n j e c t e d waters 

14 stay i n t h a t well? 

15 A. No, s i r . 

16 Q. I f I look at the C-108 t h a t ' s included as your 

17 E x h i b i t 2, i s t h i s the same C-108 t h a t was presented at 

18 the Examiner Hearing? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 Q. And t h i s i s the schematic t h a t d i d n ' t have the 

21 cement shown behind the l i n e r ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

22 A. Right. 

23 Q. Would i t be b e t t e r t o go ahead and move back 

24 t o the new data t h a t you prepared, Tab 3, the sundry 

25 n o t i c e and at tachments, t o take a look a t t h a t wel lbore? 
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1 A. Sure. 

2 Q. Would t h a t be more accurate? Does t h a t show 

3 the c u r r e n t cement i n the well? 

4 A. Well, l e t me lo c a t e t h a t . 

5 Q. I t ' s the l a s t page on E x h i b i t 3. Not the 

6 l a s t --

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. -- the second page i n E x h i b i t 3. 

9 Does t h i s more ac c u r a t e l y show the current 

10 c o n f i g u r a t i o n of the well? 

11 A. I t does. I added the damaged i n t e r v a l , 

12 i d e n t i f i e d t h a t on the schematic. And I simply put i n 

13 some -- t h a t p u r p l i s h - c o l o r shading, i n d i c a t i n g at the 

14 time, before we had the bond l o g or d i d any serious 

15 c a l c u l a t i o n s , not knowing e x a c t l y what happened t o the 

16 760 sacks of cement t h a t was pumped on the f i r s t r e p a i r 

17 attempt. So I j u s t used t h a t purple shading t o i n d i c a t e 

18 t h a t we know -- we obviously got some cement pumped down 

19 there. I j u s t d i d n ' t put a s o l i d top and bottom on i t , 

2 0 not knowing. And I d i d t h i s p r i o r t o -- or about the 

21 same time t h a t we ran the cement bond l o g . 

22 Q. O r i g i n a l l y you i n d i c a t e d i n the o r i g i n a l 

23 hearing t h a t you thought the cement was from the surface 

24 t o 4,168 because there were p e r f o r a t i o n s there. Do you 

25 r e c a l l t h a t ? 
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1 A. Yes, s i r . Not p e r f o r a t i o n s there. I thought 

2 t h a t ' s where the hole and the problems --

3 Q. Are you changing t h a t testimony today? 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You mean p e r f o r a t i o n s 

5 i n the sense t h a t there's a hole there? 

6 MR. CARR: There's a hole there and t h a t 

7 the cement went i n t o the hole, i n s t e a d of going on down 

8 the casing. 

9 A. Corroded pipe sections there, not p e r f o r a t i o n s 

10 shot through the pipe. 

11 Q. (By Mr. Carr) Are you changing t h a t testimony 

12 today? 

13 A. I'm -- at the time, I thought t h a t perhaps 

14 t h a t would f l o w down t o -- back i n t o the pipe and s e t t l e 

15 out on the bridge p l u g t h a t they had set. So I thought 

16 somewhere i n t h a t depth would probably be what we were 

17 l o o k i n g a t . 

18 Q. I want t o understand what you bel i e v e the 

19 c o n f i g u r a t i o n of the cement t o be i n t h i s w e l l . I f I go 

20 back t o the f i r s t r e p a i r attempt, I have understood your 

21 testimony t o be i n the past t h a t you thought you had good 

22 cement outside the casing t o a depth of 4,168; i s t h a t 

23 true? 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 Q. That you a l so , i n the second r e p a i r a t tempt , 
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1 had good cement from the t o t a l depth up t o about 7,700 

2 f e e t ; i s t h a t correct? 

3 A. Yes, s i r . 

4 Q. And t h a t you had put a l i n e r i n the w e l l , and 

5 you have a good cement bond behind the l i n e r ? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. My question i s , from 4,168 t o 7,700, can you 

8 t e l l me you have a good cement job between the 

9 fiv e - a n d - a - h a l f casing and the formation? 

10 A. Since we've obtained -- since we've run the 

11 cement bond l o g and obtained t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n , I was 

12 p l e a s a n t l y s u r p r i s e d how good the bond --

13 Q. I don't want t o know i f you're p l e a s a n t l y 

14 s u r p r i s e d how good i t was. The question i s , do you have 

15 an e f f e c t i v e cement bond on the casing from the surface 

16 a l l the way t o t o t a l depth? 

17 A. I b e l i e v e we do. 

18 Q. So i n s e r t i n g the l i n e r and pumping cement 

19 behind t h a t was unnecessary, i n your opinion? 

20 A. I don't b e l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. Why was i t necessary i f you had a good cement 

22 bond behind the casing? 

23 A. We were s t i l l l e a k i n g . When they pumped i n t o 

24 i t , Mr. Carr, they s t i l l had some f l u i d l o s s . I believe 

25 they could pressure up t o a couple thousand, 2,500 p s i , 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 d 4-41 cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 



1 and they 
Page 203 

would lose about a h a l f a b a r r e l a minute. 

2 Q. Where were you l o s i n g t h a t ; do you know? 

3 A. I t ' s somewhere across those i n t e r v a l s . I 

4 c o u l d n 1 t t e l l you f o r sure. 

5 Q. Across what i n t e r v a l s ? 

6 A. I don't know f o r sure what i n t e r v a l s . I 

7 assume where the casing was damaged. 

8 Q. Could t h a t have been i n the Queen? 

9 A. Absol u t e l y . 

10 Q. San Andres? 

11 A. Absolutely. 

12 Q. Delaware? 

13 A. I don't know t h a t our damaged pipe got down t o 

14 the Delaware, but wherever a h a l f a b a r r e l a minute could 

15 leak o f f t o . 

16 Q. And i f i t leaked o f f there, would i t be your 

17 opinion t h a t i t would stay i n the Queen i f i t was i n the 

18 Queen? 

19 A. I would assume so. 

20 Q. I t wouldn't move t o the San Andres? 

21 A. Again, i t ' s got t o have some s o r t of conduit 

22 t o move t o make t h a t t r a n s i t i o n . 

23 Q. I f there are e x h i b i t s t h a t show pressure and 

24 f l u i d responses over t h i s broad i n t e r v a l , you would say 

25 i t wasn't anything t o do w i t h the wellbore? 
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1 A. Since our -- I'm so r r y . 

2 Q. I'm t a l k i n g about the v e r t i c a l movement 

3 outside the casing. 

4 A. Since the r e p a i r job? Pressure data since the 

5 r e p a i r job? 

6 Q. Since the r e p a i r j o b . 

7 A. I'm so r r y . Could you ask t h a t again? 

8 Q. Are you saying t h a t the way the w e l l i s 

9 configured today and the cement you have i n the w e l l 

10 today, t h a t you cannot have v e r t i c a l movement outside the 

11 wellbore between the Queen and San Andres? 

12 A. I can't say t h a t . 

13 Q. Okay. I f there are questions about the 

14 i n t e g r i t y outside the casing from 4,168 down t o 7,700, by 

15 p u t t i n g a l i n e r i n the w e l l and cementing i t , are you 

16 able t o go back and pump a d d i t i o n a l cement behind t h a t 

17 casing? 

18 A. Only outside the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f . 

19 Q. Could you go through the l i n e r and through the 

20 casing t o get out there t o add a d d i t i o n a l cement, or does 

21 the placement of t h a t l i n e r make t h a t extremely 

22 d i f f i c u l t , i f not impossible? 

23 A. You can c e r t a i n l y shoot p e r f o r a t i o n s t o 

24 squeeze --

25 Q. And y o u ' d be w i l l i n g t o do t h a t or recommend 
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1 t h a t i f t h a t needs t o be done? 

2 A. I f t h a t needed t o be done, we would c e r t a i n l y 

3 consider whatever seems appropriate i f a d d i t i o n a l r e p a i r s 

4 were need. 

5 Q. I f I look at the new sundry n o t i c e t o b r i n g 

6 t h i n g s up t o date, t h a t i s dated about two weeks ago, 

7 September 23rd; i s t h a t correct? 

8 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s more than two weeks ago. 

9 Q. Let's j u s t say September 23rd. 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. I t ' s been r e c e n t l y done? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . 

13 Q. You've been working on the w e l l since A p r i l of 

14 when? 

15 A. '09. 

16 Q. And t h i s i s when you decided t o do that? Was 

17 i t i n p r e p a r a t i o n f o r today's hearing? 

18 A. That was c e r t a i n l y p a r t of the co n s i d e r a t i o n . 

19 But i t was also going back through and making sure t h a t 

2 0 we had done ev e r y t h i n g t h a t was prudent t o do. And t h a t 

21 was something t h a t we i d e n t i f i e d t h a t had been overlooked 

22 on several occasions, and I i n s i s t e d t h a t we get t h a t 

23 f i l e d . 

24 Q. I n your w r i t t e n summary, there i s the 

25 statement t h a t a l e n g t h of bad casing was located between 
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1 5,332 and 4,168? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. Does t h a t s t i l l e x i s t behind the cemented 

4 l i n e r ? 

5 A. The casing was damaged, cement was pumped, and 

6 a l i n e r was i n s t a l l e d . 

7 Q. So you have t h a t damaged casing, cement and a 

8 l i n e r over i t ? 

9 A. And t h a t casing i s s t i l l damaged. 

10 Q. And t h a t i s where p o t e n t i a l l y f l u i d moved i n t o 

11 the formation? 

12 A. At the time t h a t we apparently had a t u b i n g 

13 leak also i n the w e l l , yes, s i r . 

14 Q. When you say the wellbore i s sound, what 

15 you're t e l l i n g me i s t h a t I can put water i n the surface 

16 and get i t t o the Bone Spring; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. We have a whole bunch of statements i n t h i s . 

19 And even though we don't want t o t a l k about anything t h a t 

20 the p r i o r operator d i d , these are a l l statements f o r work 

21 on the w e l l t h a t were p a i d by the p r i o r operator; i s n ' t 

22 t h a t true? 

23 A. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. They spent a l o t of money on the w e l l . You 

25 t e s t i f i e d t o t h a t ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 
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1 A. Yes, s i r . 

2 Q. You were not employed at the time t h i s work 

3 was done; correc t ? 

4 A. Correct. 

5 Q. I t ' s the p r i o r operator who d i d t h i s before 

6 you were on the scene? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. Was there an approved C-103 f o r the work done 

9 t h a t was done on t h a t well? 

10 A. Not t o my knowledge. 

11 Q. There was no OCD a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o do i t ; i s 

12 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

13 A. Correct. 

14 Q. I n f a c t , there was a C-103 t h a t was denied by 

15 the OCD on February 6, 2008; correc t ? 

16 A. Yes, s i r . 

17 Q. Yet the work was done a f t e r the OCD denied 

18 a u t h o r i t y t o do t h i s very work? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

2 0 Q. Wouldn't you t h i n k , i f you were a d v i s i n g 

21 somebody today, t h a t i f they went out and worked on the 

22 w e l l a f t e r the C-103 had been denied, they were t a k i n g 

23 some r i s k s spending t h a t money? 

24 A. Absol u t e l y . 

25 Q. Again, your E x h i b i t Number 7 from T r i p l e N i s 

1 
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1 j u s t a summary of the work t h a t was done without an 

2 approved C-103? 

3 A. E x h i b i t Number 7? 

4 Q. I'm s o r r y . E x h i b i t Number 5. 

5 A. Yes, s i r . I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. I want t o go t o E x h i b i t 6. This i s your new 

7 e x h i b i t , w i t h a number of sample w e l l co n f i g u r a t i o n s ? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. I t h i n k you s t a t e d t h a t these were t y p i c a l 

10 s a l t w a t e r a p p l i c a t i o n s t h a t were r o u t i n e l y approved; i s 

11 t h a t r i g h t ? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . 

13 Q. I t h i n k when you look at these -- and then at 

14 the end, you compared i t t o t h i s w e l l . You s t a t e d t h a t 

15 the cur r e n t w e l l a p p l i c a t i o n exceeds what i s r o u t i n e l y 

16 approved by the OCD i n other circumstances? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. You administered the underground i n j e c t i o n 

19 program f o r the OCD f o r a number of years; d i d you not? 

20 A. Yes, s i r . 

21 Q. I n t h a t time, you processed hundreds of 

22 s a l t w a t e r disposal a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. D id you process some of these t h a t are 

25 i n c l u d e d i n E x h i b i t 6? 
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1 A. Undoubtedly i n the time frame 1994, they could 

2 p o s s i b l y have been mine. 

3 Q. But t h a t wasn't the basis f o r s e l e c t i n g them; 

4 i s t h a t f a i r t o say? 

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. You're f a m i l i a r w i t h each of these examples 

7 t h a t you presented here today? 

8 A. Only t o the extent of reviewing the wellbore 

9 diagrams and seeing t h a t i t i l l u s t r a t e d what I was t r y i n g 

10 t o present. 

11 Q. Were you t r y i n g t o show t h a t s a l t w a t e r 

12 disposal w e l l s were approved where there was no cement 

13 behind the casing at c e r t a i n i n t e r v a l s ? 

14 A. C e r t a i n l y we have l i m i t e d amounts of i s o l a t i o n 

15 i n l o t s of the i n j e c t i o n zones. 

16 Q. Were a l l of these s i x examples f o r new 

17 i n j e c t i o n w e l l a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

18 A. I'm not sure. 

19 Q. Are you aware of any of these w e l l s t h a t had 

20 been p r e v i o u s l y used t o i n j e c t f l u i d s i n t o a r e s e r v o i r ? 

21 A. I'm sorr y , Mr. Carr. I d i d n ' t review t h a t . I 

22 j u s t went through -- went t o the wellbore diagram, saw 

23 t h a t i t met what I was l o o k i n g f o r . 

24 Q. I have the a p p l i c a t i o n s here. Would you j u s t 

25 accept t h a t none of these are w e l l s i n which there had 
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1 been p r e v i o u s l y f l u i d s i n j e c t e d i n t o the r e s e r v o i r , or 

2 would you l i k e t o look at them? 

3 A. No. That's f i n e . 

4 Q. You accept that? 

5 A. They were selected completely at random. 

6 Q. I f you don't know t h a t , you don't know whether 

7 or not any of these were a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r di s p o s a l , I 

8 assume, i n the formations i n which p r i o r i n j e c t i o n had 

9 s u b s t a n t i a l l y exceeded the withdrawal from those w e l l s ; 

10 correct? 

11 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. Were there o b j e c t i o n s t o any of these 

13 a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

14 A. Again, I d i d n ' t go i n t o any in-depth of 

15 reviewing the a p p l i c a t i o n s . 

16 Q. You can take them. But would you accept t h a t 

17 there were no o b j e c t i o n s at the time any of these were 

18 approved? 

19 A. Sure. 

2 0 Q. Had the work already been done on any of these 

21 pursuant t o a C-103 or one t h a t had not been approved, or 

22 do you know that? 

23 A. I don't know t h a t . 

24 Q. When you were approving hundreds of 

25 a p p l i c a t i o n s , you got ob j e c t i o n s from operators from time 
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t o time; d i d you not? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. When t h a t happened, you went back t o the 

4 a p p l i c a n t ; d i d you not? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. You looked t o them t o prove t h a t the i n j e c t i o n 

7 could be s a f e l y accomplished? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. When you approved an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

10 i n j e c t i o n , you approved them because you were also 

11 concerned about pre v e n t i n g waste of o i l and gas; were you 

12 not? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . 

14 Q. You were also concerned about c o r r e l a t i v e 

15 r i g h t s , t h a t they weren't impaired? 

16 A. Yes, s i r . 

17 Q. You were also l o o k i n g a t these t o be sure t h a t 

18 o i l , gas and water stayed i n the zones i n t o which they 

19 were i n j e c t e d ? 

20 A. Yes, s i r . 

21 Q. To do t h a t , d i d n ' t you have t o look a t more 

22 than j u s t the i n t e g r i t y of the wellbore i n a s i n g l e 

23 mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t ? 

24 A. We would j u s t look at the area of review, the 

25 wellbores i n t h a t area of review t h a t penetrated the 
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1 proposed i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l , any plugged w e l l s t h a t were 

2 i n t h a t AOR, t o see t h a t they were p r o p e r l y plugged. I'm 

3 not sure i f t h a t answers your question or not. 

4 Q. I f the a p p l i c a t i o n before you was an 

5 a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t r e q u i r e d n o t i c e t o o f f s e t operators, and 

6 one of them objected, saying, "You're going t o water out 

7 my w e l l , " d i d n ' t you make t h a t a p p l i c a n t prove i t would 

8 not? 

9 A. I f t h a t ' s the case and there was no s e t t l i n g 

10 between the p a r t i e s at t h a t p o i n t , i t was sent t o 

11 hearing. 

12 Q. And the a p p l i c a n t had t o prove they could 

13 s a f e l y i n j e c t ? I s n ' t t h a t j u s t the normal process? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. I f you had an op e r a t i o n over i n the vacuum 

16 area where you knew there were waterflows or had evidence 

17 of i t , you looked beyond the wellbore, d i d n ' t you? 

18 A. Sure. 

19 Q. Here, you j u s t made a cursory review of the 

20 geology outside the wellbore t h a t ' s not an area t h a t 

21 you're t e s t i f y i n g to? 

22 A. I looked at the area of review w e l l s and the 

23 plugged w e l l s , and there was only one wellbore i n t h a t 

24 area of review t h a t penetrated the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l . 

25 Q. But you d i d have an o b j e c t i o n i n t h i s case? 
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1 A. Yes, s i r . 

2 Q. To approve a w e l l where there was an 

3 o b j e c t i o n , the same th i n g s were going on i n the 

4 formation, you would look f o r more than j u s t a bond l o g ; 

5 would you not? That only t e l l s you about the wellbore. 

6 A. Would you repeat the question, please? 

7 Q. I f you have an o b j e c t i o n -- an a p p l i c a t i o n t o 

8 which there was an o b j e c t i o n about something happening i n 

9 the r e s e r v o i r , you would expect the a p p l i c a n t t o produce 

10 more than j u s t a bond l o g t h a t t o l d you only about the 

11 wellbore i t s e l f ? 

12 A. I would l i k e f o r them t o be able t o run a 

13 r a d i o a c t i v e t r a c e r survey and present some pressure bond 

14 t e s t s i n other o f f s e t t i n g w e l l s . 

15 Q. You recommended the r a d i o a c t i v e t r a c e r survey; 

16 d i d you not? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Do you r e c a l l I asked you i f you could run 

19 t h a t , and i f there was a problem i n the formation, t h a t 

20 you might run a t r a c e r and never see i t ? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . That's why you run the temperature 

22 i n combination --

23 Q. And t h a t was your testimony? 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 Q. I f we go t o E x h i b i t 7, the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 d 4-41 cb-a508-6b5f09e 1 a493 



Page 214 

1 h i s t o r y --

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. --we have a l o t of inspections out here, I 

4 guess, t h a t you t e s t i f i e d to? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. I n the l e t t e r t h a t you sent t r a n s m i t t i n g the 

7 C-108, Mr. H i l l s t a t e d t h a t , "We had a l o t of problems 

8 w i t h the p r i o r operator. Maybe t h a t ' s why they were 

9 i n s p e c t i n g . " 

10 Do you t h i n k t h a t t h a t ' s why i t could be? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 Q. Mr. H i l l s a i d the w e l l was t e c h n i c a l l y sound 

13 and ready f o r i n j e c t i o n . That again would j u s t be a 

14 statement c o n s i s t e n t t h a t an MIT t e s t was passed? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . 

16 Q. I f we go t o the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y , page 

17 4, the item f o r November 20, 2006 -- can you f i n d that? 

18 I t ' s the f o u r t h or f i f t h one down. 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 Q. I t says, "Gauge showing 1,990 pounds. W i l l 

21 check again l a t e r " ? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Do you know, was t h a t above the authorized 

24 i n j e c t i o n pressure f o r t h i s well? 

25 A. I be l i e v e the i n j e c t i o n pressure was s l i g h t l y 
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below t h a t . I t ' s 1,900, I b e l i e v e . 

2 Q. This i s evidence t h a t they even i n j e c t e d over 

3 the a u t horized pressure? 

4 A. Possibly. 

5 Q • And f i n a l l y , on October 22nd -- maybe t h a t was 

6 the one t h a t was two weeks ago -- you got an assignment 

7 of the Government El w e l l i n t o Agua Sucia; i s n ' t t h a t 

8 r i g h t ? That was the new t i t l e document you t e s t i f i e d 

9 about, the assignment i n t o Agua Sucia? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And t h a t was j u s t done two weeks ago; i s t h a t 

12 r i g h t ? 

13 A. The assignment t o Agua Sucia? 

14 Q. Yes. I thought your t i t l e data showed t h a t 

15 t h a t was dated October 22nd, 2010. 

16 A. Yes, s i r . 

17 Q. Who owned the w e l l before then? 

18 A. Before? 

19 Q. Before August 22nd, 2010. Mr. Schoenhofer? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. So the w e l l had been i n Agua Sucia, assigned 

22 on t h a t date? 

23 A. Right. 

24 MR. CARR: That's a l l I have. Thank you. 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we take a 
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1 10-minute break before we begin w i t h the Commission's 

2 questions and reconvene at 3:30? 
i 

3 (A recess was taken.) 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the 

5 record. Again, we are i n the r e g u l a r l y scheduled 

6 Thursday, November 4th, 2010, meeting of the New Mexico 

7 O i l Conservation Commission. The record should r e f l e c t 

8 t h a t a l l three Commissioners are present. We've j u s t 

9 returned from break. We are about t o begin w i t h the 

10 Commission questioning of Mr. Stone. 

11 Commissioner Bailey? 

12 

13 

14 EXAMINATION 

15 BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

16 Q. Mr. Stone, you s a i d you were not here t o 

17 discuss geology. W i l l there be a witness f o r discussion 

18 of geology? 

19 A. I t h i n k Mr. Lee could b e t t e r address t e c h n i c a l 

20 g e o l o g i c a l questions. 

21 Q. Okay. The o l d l o g t h a t you brought i n today, 

22 I assume you had a chance t o review i t , t o analyze i t , t o 

23 determine whether or not you see any repeat sections or 

24 poss i b l e f r a c t u r e s i n d i c a t e d through the zones i n 

25 question here, the Queen and the Bone Spring and 
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1 i n t e r v e n i n g ones? 

2 A. Are you r e f e r r i n g t o the casing i n s p e c t i o n 

3 log? 

4 Q. I s t h a t the l o g t h a t you brought i n t h a t you 

5 said you received two days ago? 

6 A. Yes, ma'am. That p a r t i c u l a r l o g wouldn't 

7 i d e n t i f y those types of t h i n g s . I t ' s simply an 

8 electromagnetic t o o l t o run i n s i d e the casing t h a t picks 

9 up p i t t i n g , s c a l i n g , general c o n d i t i o n of the s t e e l and 

10 the pipe. And I have reviewed i t , but I have not 

11 analyzed i t , j u s t running through t h e r e . 

12 The wir e l i n e company made the statement t h a t 

13 there are no holes apparent, so there was no in-depth 

14 an a l y s i s of i t . I t j u s t g e n e r a l l y looks l i k e o l d casing, 

15 very t y p i c a l of what you see i n any o l d w e l l . 

16 Q. I d i d not r e a l i z e t h a t i t was not p a r t of the 

17 o r i g i n a l sweep of the logs t h a t would have been run. 

18 However, would the pipe thickness show up on t h i s l o g 

19 t h a t was run -- what's the date -- 2001? 

20 A. I'm not sure how pipe thickness i s i d e n t i f i e d 

21 on the r e . I t h i n k i t shows more of an i n t e r n a l scale of 

22 the i n s i d e of the pipe. 

23 Q. So i t would not show i f there were any 

24 c o r r o s i o n holes or anything along t h a t l i n e ? I s th a t 

25 what you're saying? 
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1 A. I t does i d e n t i f y t h a t . 

2 Q. But you do not see any? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t , nor d i d the company t h a t ran 
4 i t . 

5 Q. So there are none present? 

6 A. Right. 

7 Q. Okay. There was mention of a nearby 

8 wa t e r f l o o d . 

9 A. Yes, ma'am. 

10 Q. What zones are they flooding? 

11 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s the Queen i n t e r v a l also. 

12 Q. I s i t ? 

13 A. Yes, ma'am. 

14 Q. I f water was escaping or was -- had found 

15 f r a c t u r e s or any other type of conduit between the nearby 

16 w a t e r f l o o d and the Armstrong w e l l s , could t h a t e x p l a i n 

17 some of the watering out of h i s production? 

18 A. Ab s o l u t e l y . That i s what we b e l i e v e , i s t h a t 

19 at l e a s t the i n i t i a l breakthrough waterflow was created 

20 by t h a t o f f s e t w a t e r f l o o d . The Queen i s the i n t e r v a l 

21 producing out o f , and t h a t ' s the zone t h a t they are 

22 i n j e c t i n g i n t o . 

23 Q. How close i s t h a t w a t e r f l o o d t h a t we haven't 

24 had a l o t of i n f o r m a t i o n about? 

25 A. I t ' s outside, j u s t a h a l f mile r a d i u s . 
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1 Q. I t i s w i t h i n the area of review? 

2 A. Just o u t s i d e the area of review. 

3 Q. Okay. So i t ' s j u s t a h a l f mile --

4 A. There may be one w e l l t h a t ' s a c t u a l l y -- I'm 

5 sor r y . There may be one w e l l of the w a t e r f l o o d t h a t ' s 

6 a c t u a l l y i n the area of review. Give me j u s t a moment. 

7 No. I t ' s j u s t outside the area of review map 

8 t o the south and west of the red AOR c i r c l e . There's the 

9 blue w e l l symbol w i t h a l i n e through i t . That's the 

10 nearest Mescalero Ridge water i n j e c t i o n w e l l . 

11 Q. Would i t be r e a l easy t o jump t o the 

12 assumption t h a t since the f l o o d i s i n the Queen and the 

13 problem w i t h the Armstrong w e l l s are i n the Queen, t h a t 

14 we should look at t h a t p o t e n t i a l problem? 

15 A. We have looked a t t h a t , and we b e l i e v e t h a t 

16 c e r t a i n l y t h a t i s a c o n t r i b u t i n g f a c t o r t o the waterflow 

17 t h a t the Armstrong i s experiencing. 

18 Q. And Me r i t Energy i s the u n i t operator there? 

19 A. They were. I'm not sure i f they s t i l l are. 

2 0 Q. Did you look a t the f r a c jobs or a c i d i z i n g 

21 t h a t was done on t h i s w e l l when i t was i n produc t i o n t o 

22 see how heavy some of those procedures were f o r opening 

23 up the formation? 

24 A. I d i d not. 

25 Q. The areas where the cement i s shown t o be bad 
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through the Queen were probably bad when the w e l l was 

2 d r i l l e d ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

3 A. On our w e l l , the Government E l , there was no 

4 cement across t h a t i n t e r v a l . And t h a t ' s very t y p i c a l of 

5 a completion. You cement the lower p o r t i o n of your 

6 p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g and b r i n g t h a t up t o whatever height 

7 the engineering s t a f f would determine. 

8 So f r e q u e n t l y you're going t o have a v o i d of 

9 cement up behind t h a t p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g . And f r e q u e n t l y 

10 even the intermediate s t r i n g , y o u ' l l have t h a t v o i d above 

11 t h a t . So i t was nothing unusual t h a t t h a t v o i d was 

12 t h e r e . 

13 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Those are a l l the 

14 questions I have. 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

16 COMMISSIONER OLSON: I t h i n k Commissioner 

17 B a i l e y asked some of the questions I had on the 

18 w a t e r f l o o d issue. 

19 EXAMINATION 

20 BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

21 Q. I guess coming, Mr. Stone, t o your 

22 recommending t h a t something we might look at i s other 

23 t e s t s before o p e r a t i o n of the w e l l , i s t h a t a l i k e 

24 r a d i o a c t i v e t r a c e r ? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . But again, t o conduct t h a t t e s t , 
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1 you obviously have t o i n j e c t i n t o the w e l l t o be able t o 

2 perform t h a t t e s t . But we t h i n k t h a t t h a t i s e s s e n t i a l 

3 t o come t o any k i n d of conclusion of what t h a t f l u i d i s 

4 a c t u a l l y doing. 

5 We contend t h a t the f l u i d -- t h a t the w e l l i s 

6 c o r r e c t l y r e p a i r e d and t h a t we would have i n j e c t i o n 

7 d i r e c t l y i n t o the Bone Spring w i t h o u t any issue. So we 

8 have t o i n j e c t i n t o the w e l l t o make t h a t determination 

9 and run those types of t e s t s . 

10 Q. How long would you need t o i n j e c t i n the w e l l 

11 t o run those te s t s ? 

12 A. Mr. Olson, they can run what's c a l l e d a 

13 pump-in t r a c e r , where you can a c t u a l l y get out there w i t h 

14 a pump t r u c k , load water and pump i n and do i t i n a few 

15 hours' time. That i s okay, except obviously as long as 

16 t h i s w e l l has not been i n j e c t i n g , we're going t o need t o 

17 charge some th i n g s up. 

18 So i n other words, what you may see i f there 

19 i s anything going on, t h a t behavior -- t h a t f l u i d flow 

20 may change. The dynamics of t h a t may change as we s t a r t 

21 t o f i l l t h a t r e s e r v o i r pressure back up. I would say 

22 c e r t a i n l y we can do a pump-in t r a c e r i n a one-day 

23 few-hour s i t u a t i o n . 

24 To be more conclusive about i t , you want t o 

25 run i t a f t e r some p e r i o d of i n j e c t i o n and then repeat 
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1 t h a t maybe i n a month. And i f t h a t ' s good, s i x months, 

2 and then maybe go on an annual basis t o c o n t i n u a l l y check 

3 and make sure t h a t e v e r y t h i n g i s being confined t o the 

4 zone. 

5 Q. I f i t ' s not confined t o the zone, does t h a t 

6 give you some l i a b i l i t y f o r impacting t h e i r production 

7 f o r Armstrong? 

8 A. I f i t d i d impact t h e i r production. But 

9 f r e q u e n t l y y o u ' l l see water -- i f you i n j e c t water at a 

10 zone, i t ' s not normally a s i t u a t i o n where you're 

11 impacting something. 

12 I t ' s j u s t -- you can i d e n t i f y -- you may pump 

13 i t up t o another sand s t r i n g or whatever and put some 

14 water away and i d e n t i f y t h a t you have a poor cement 

15 sheath or whatever. 

16 So c e r t a i n l y Agua Sucia would understand at 

17 t h a t p o i n t t h a t there would need t o be e i t h e r a d d i t i o n a l 

18 remedial a c t i o n s or make a d e c i s i o n on what they want t o 

19 do. 

20 Q. What are the cl o s e s t w e l l s of Armstrong's t o 

21 the Agua Sucia well? 

22 A. The main w e l l i s t h e i r Superior Number 6, and 

23 i t ' s l o c a t e d j u s t 370 f e e t t o the n o r t h . 

24 COMMISSIONER OLSON: That's a l l the 

25 questions I have. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

2 EXAMINATION 

3 BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

4 Q. Mr. Stone, j u s t t o make sure I understood what 

5 you were t r y i n g t o show us w i t h t h a t l o g , you've got a 

6 f o u r - i n c h f l u s h j o i n t l i n e r hung i n a five-and-a-half a t 

7 3,843; r i g h t ? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. And the five-and-a-half i s from 3,843 t o 

10 9,597? 

11 A. The five-and-ahalf i s from surface. 

12 Q. You're r i g h t . The f o u r - i n c h f l u s h j o i n t i s 

13 from 3,843 t o 9,597, and the fi v e - a n d - a h a l f i s from 

14 surface t o TD -- e s s e n t i a l l y TD 10,277? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . 

16 Q. And we've got a cement -- not a cement bond 

17 l o g , but a thermal temperature survey t h a t shows the top 

18 of the o r i g i n a l cement on a fiv e - a n d - a - h a l f at 7,700 

19 f e e t ; r i g h t ? 

20 A. Yes, s i r . 

21 Q. And you're comfortable w i t h the bond between 

22 the l i n e r and the cement and the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f , and the 

23 fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f i n the hole up t o the 7,700 feet? That 

24 was the pure black s e c t i o n on t h a t log? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. And your c o n t e n t i o n i s t h a t t h a t i s a j 

2 r e f l e c t i o n of the good bond through both the annulus 

3 between the f o u r - i n c h f l u s h j o i n t and the j 

4 fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f , and the five-and-a-half and the seven 

5 and seven-eighths hole; r i g h t ? j 

6 A. Again, you're seeing -- p r i m a r i l y you're ; 

7 seeing t h a t sheath outside -- i t ' s between the f o u r - i n c h 

8 and the f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f . You're seeing the obvious 

9 evidence t h a t you've got bond. 

10 You've got some i n s u l a t i o n , something between 

11 t o c a r r y t h a t sonic s i g n a l out t o the next l a y e r , the 

12 fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f and the cement sheath. 

13 But my p o i n t of t h a t i s there's no reason t o j 

14 suspect anything i s wrong w i t h the o r i g i n a l cement job on j 

15 t h a t f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f anyway. And whatever q u a l i t a t i v e j 

16 issues there may be I t h i n k are trumped by the sheer 

17 height of t h a t i s o l a t i o n . 

18 Q. You've got n e a r l y 2,000 f o o t of -- j 

19 A. Right. . j 

2 0 Q. But you're not t e l l i n g us from the l o g t h a t j 

21 t h a t i s a good bond? j 

22 A. We can't t e l l t h a t t h a t ' s a good bond. We I 

23 j u s t know there i s bond. 

24 Q. So i t could p o t e n t i a l l y be -- i t could 

25 p o t e n t i a l l y have a water channel i n there? We can't say j 
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1 t h a t f o r sure from the bond l o g we ran? 

2 A. We can't say t h a t f o r sure. But again, t h a t ' s 

3 why cement jobs are designed t o elevate t h a t height. 

4 So again, where you've got 100 f e e t , maybe 

5 y o u ' l l get through i t . At 20 0 f e e t , you reduce those 

6 chances. At 500 f e e t , 2,000 f e e t , you reduce those 

7 chances tremendously t h a t you're ever going t o squeeze 

8 anything up through t h a t cement. 

9 Q. From the 7,700 f o o t up t o the casing sheath at 

10 eight and f i v e - e i g h t h s at 4,089, there i s no cement 

11 behind the f i v e - a n d - a - h a l f ; r i g h t ? 

12 A. No. We beli e v e t h a t cement -- because we can 

13 see -- again, because we have bond between the f o u r - i n c h 

14 and the fi v e - a n d - a - h a l f , we can see through there, based 

15 on the v a r i a b l e d e n s i t y , the s q u i g g l y - l i n e p o r t i o n . We 

16 can see other c o l o r r i n g s because there i s some bonding 

17 between those s t r i n g s . 

18 Q. But the o r i g i n a l temperature l o g t h a t was run 

19 when the w e l l was d r i l l e d showed t h a t top at 7,700 feet? 

2 0 A. Right. 

21 Q. Have you done any vol u m e t r i c c a l c u l a t i o n s t o 

22 see how high the cement should have come? 

23 A. On t h a t o r i g i n a l --

24 Q. On the o r i g i n a l cement j o b . 

25 A. No, s i r , I d i d n ' t do t h a t . 
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But your theory i s t h a t there i s bond above 

2 the 7,700 fo o t t h a t the temperature l o g showed? 

3 A. From the f i r s t r e p a i r attempt, the 760 sacks 

4 t h a t they pumped between the e i g h t and f i v e - e i g h t h s and 

5 the f i v e -and-a-half --

6 Q- They pumped t h a t from the surface --

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. -- down? 

9 A. Right. 

10 Q. Okay. They would have had t o displace the 

11 f l u i d i n t h a t annulus somewhere. Where d i d i t go? 

12 A. I assume t h a t t h a t would go i n t o whatever 

13 p o r o s i t y was a v a i l a b l e through t h a t i n t e r v a l . You're not 

14 t a l k i n g a huge volume of water. But c e r t a i n l y cement i s 

15 going t o displace water and push i t away, so --

16 Q. So you got some bond from t h a t r e p a i r attempt? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. Has t h i s w e l l ever been frac'd? 

19 A. I don't know t h a t . 

20 Q. And i t was i n i t i a l l y a lower Bone Spring 

21 producing well? 

22 A. I b e l i e v e i t was a Bone Spring producer. I'm 

23 not sure. I b e l i e v e i t was. 

24 Q- Now, Armstrong has a p o i n t . You've i n j e c t e d 

25 or the predecessors t o your c l i e n t have i n j e c t e d four 
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1 times the volume t h a t they removed from the well? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. Where d i d t h a t water go? 

4 A. I would p r e f e r t o defer t h a t t o our engineer, 

5 as he i s prepared t o t e s t i f y t o the volu m e t r i c s . 

6 Q. Just n e g l e c t i n g f o r a minute the 

7 c o m p r e s s i b i l i t y of the o i l and the gas t h a t were 

8 produced, i f the formation were t r u l y h o l d i n g t h a t f l u i d , 

9 your pressures would be s i g n i f i c a n t l y higher than the 

10 o r i g i n a l bottomhole pressure, wouldn't they? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 Q. We don't see t h a t i n d i c a t i o n on t h i s w e l l , do 

13 we? 

14 A. Right. I t h i n k , again, Mr. Lee could b e t t e r 

15 answer those questions. 

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I ' l l t a l k t o Mr. Lee 

17 about t h a t . I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

18 Mr. Bruce, any r e d i r e c t ? 

19 MR. BRUCE: Just a couple. 

20 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR. BRUCE: 

22 Q. Mr. Stone, Mr. Carr asked you about payment of 

23 the 2009 in v o i c e s . Those were paid f o r by Agua Sucia; 

2 4 were they not? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. And Mr. Carr mentioned a recent assignment 

2 from Dennis Schoenhofer t o Agua Sucia. What's the 

3 r e l a t i o n s h i p between Mr. Schoenhofer and Agua Sucia? 

4 A. He i s a p r i n c i p a l of Agua Sucia. 

5 Q. And again, g e t t i n g t o t h i s , Mr. Carr asked 

6 about some s o r t of conduit which would allow i n j e c t e d 

7 s a l t w a t e r t o come up t o the Queen or wherever. 

8 Again, your t r a c e r and temperature surveys 

9 would show whether there was a conduit? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. And i n answer t o Commissioner Olson's 

1.2 questions, there could be a quick t e s t done which would 

13 show something immediately; r i g h t ? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. But you would l i k e t o i n j e c t i n t o the 

16 formation f o r at l e a s t a short p e r i o d t o conduct a more 

17 thorough evaluation? I s t h a t what you're saying? 

18 A. Right. I t h i n k i t would be more conclusive. 

19 Q. And i f there was a conduit or something showed 

20 up t h a t there was a conduit, Agua Sucia would have t o 

21 shut the w e l l in? 

22 A. Yes, s i r . 

23 Q. And cease i n j e c t i o n u n t i l i t was f u r t h e r 

24 repaired? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. And between the work t h a t was done and the 

2 these t r a c e r surveys t h a t you mentioned, you be l i e v e t h a t 

3 Agua Sucia can show t h a t i t can s a f e l y i n j e c t i n t o t h i s 

4 well? 

5 A. I be l i e v e they can. 

6 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, 

7 Mr. Chairman. 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, anything on 

9 that? 

10 MR. CARR: Just a f o l l o w up. 

11 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. CARR: 

13 Q. Mr. Stone, i n h i s opening statement, Mr. Bruce 

14 made a b i g deal about Agua Sucia not being Louray. We 

15 t a l k about Louray doing a l l t h i s work without an approved 

16 C-103? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. And you j u s t t o l d me t h a t Agua Sucia p a i d f o r 

19 t h a t . 

20 A. Dennis Schoenhofer p a i d f o r i t . 

21 Q. So Mr. Schoenhofer was inv o l v e d back at t h a t 

22 time? 

23 A. He was backing Louray. 

24 Q. So a l though we have a new opera tor and we've 

25 assigned the w e l l i n the l a s t few weeks, we have the same 
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1 people i n v o l v e d way back? 

2 A. Well, again --

3 Q. Well, Mr. Schoenhofer p a i d the b i l l s i n 2008; 

4 r i g h t ? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. And he's involved --

7 MR. BRUCE: I'm o b j e c t i n g , Mr. Examiner. 

8 He's m i s c h a r a c t e r i z i n g the evidence. I was t a l k i n g 2009 

9 versus 2008. Lets be c l e a r about who p a i d f o r --

10 Q. (By Mr. Carr) You only p a i d f o r the work i n 

11 2009? I s t h a t what you said? 

12 A. Correct. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: "You," being? 

14 MR. BRUCE: Agua Sucia. 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But Louray paid f o r the 

16 work i n 2008, and t h a t was Mr. Schoenhofer? 

17 MR. BRUCE: No, no. That was Mr. Edgett. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Was he being backed by 

19 Mr. Schoenhofer? 

20 THE WITNESS: Not at t h a t time. Not t o my 

21 knowledge. I b e l i e v e Mr. Schoenhofer came i n when the 

22 f i n a l r e p a i r j o b was done, and the expenses exceeded the 

23 wherewithal of Louray t o keep up w i t h . And at t h a t p o i n t 

24 i s where t h a t r e l a t i o n s h i p s t a r t e d . 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So what i s the 
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1 r e l a t i o n s h i p between Louray and Schoenhofer at any given 

2 p o i n t i n time? 

3 THE WITNESS: He backed them at t h a t 

4 p o i n t . And at some p o i n t , Mr. Schoenhofer f e l t l i k e he 

5 was f a r enough i n t o i t t h a t perhaps he needed t o own the 

6 operation, r a t h e r than being a s i l e n t backer of such an 

7 opera t i o n . 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So when d i d 

9 Mr. Schoenhofer s t a r t p u t t i n g money i n t o Louray; do you 

10 know? 

11 THE WITNESS: I be l i e v e w i t h t h a t second 

12 r e p a i r j o b i n 2009, March/April 2009. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr? 

14 Q. (By Mr. Carr) A f t e r Mr. Schoenhofer s t a r t e d 

15 p u t t i n g money i n , he had an ope r a t i n g agreement, and 

16 Mr. Edgett was designated the agent f o r the company; d i d 

17 he not? 

18 A. Yes, s i r . 

19 Q. And he continued o p e r a t i n g the pro p e r t y f o r 

2 0 Mr. Schoenhofer; d i d he not? 

21 A. That's my understanding. 

2 2 Q. You i n d i c a t e d , i n response t o Mr. Bruce's 

23 question, t h a t there might be a quick t e s t t h a t would 

24 show everything? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. As I understand your testimony, i f you run a 

2 t r a c e r i n t o t h i s w e l l and they found an area of less 

3 resistance or f l o o d i n g o f f i n t o the Delaware, you might 

4 never see t h a t . I s n ' t t h a t what you said? 

5 A. I'm s o r r y , Mr. Carr. I f I can expound on 

6 t h a t --

7 Q. I want t o ask you what your testimony was. I 

8 want t o ask you -- you can expound t o Mr. Bruce. 

9 Did you not t e s t i f y t h a t i f you run a t r a c e r 

10 i n the w e l l , you might never see i t ? 

11 A. I n response t o the question about i t showing 

12 up i n another w e l l . 

13 Q. Would you go t o E x h i b i t Number 17, which i s 

14 the t r a n s c r i p t of the p r i o r hearing, and please t u r n t o 

15 page 171? On Line 9 I asked you the question, 

16 "Mr. Stone, i f we were t o run a t r a c e r -- a r a d i o a c t i v e 

17 t r a c e r t o t r y and chase the m i g r a t i o n of a large volume 

18 of f l u i d through a f r a c t u r e system, do you have any idea 

19 how long t h a t would take?" 

2 0 What was your answer? Would you read i t , 

21 please? 

22 A. " I t ' s hard t o say. Just based on Mr. Stubbs' 

23 testimony, we t h i n k t h a t t h a t may be o c c u r r i n g r a p i d l y , 

24 say i n a week's time, so you could watch i t . " 

25 Q. Go on. 
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1 A. "You a c t u a l l y have t o monitor i t f o r an 

2 extended p e r i o d of time, maybe give i t a couple of days 

3 p r i o r t o 24-hour monitoring of the wellbore t h a t you 

4 suspect i t may be communicating over t o so you can see 

5 some s o r t of d e t e c t i o n . Again, you've got your h a l f l i f e 

6 working against you, and also d i l u t i o n of your m a t e r i a l . 

7 So i t ' s a -- i t ' s a long-term, around-the-clock 

8 s i t u a t i o n . But again, using the MCA p r o j e c t j u s t as an 

9 example, we can detect a f t e r s i x weeks the i n t r o d u c t i o n 

10 of r a d i o a c t i v e m a t e r i a l t o the o f f s e t wellbores." 

11 Q. Question, "But i t might take longer than 

12 t h a t ? " Answer? 

13 A. "You may never see i t . " 

14 Q. Thank you. 

15 A. From one w e l l t o another. 

16 Q. So while we're w a i t i n g and may never see i t , 

17 you get t o i n j e c t ? 

18 A. From one w e l l t o another. 

19 Q. That's where you'd expect t o see i t ; correct? 

20 Where else are you going t o see i t ? 

21 MR. BRUCE: I ask t h a t Mr. Stone be 

22 allowed t o answer the question. 

2 3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you go ahead 

24 and complete your answer? 

25 A. We're confusing methods. The quick t e s t I'm 
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1 t a l k i n g about i s pumping i n t o the w e l l , i n t r o d u c i n g your 

2 r a d i o a c t i v e isotope i n t o t h a t w e l l and watching i t e x i t 

3 and perhaps channel up and around. This i s immediate. 

4 I t ' s r e a l time. 1 
5 The context t h a t we were j u s t discussing here 

6 was i n response t o Mr. Stubbs t a l k i n g about the immediate 

7 response they had from our wellbore t o t h e i r wellbore. 

8 So we were d e s c r i b i n g a s i t u a t i o n o f , f o r example, the 

9 MCA p i l o t p r o j e c t , where you introduce a r a d i o a c t i v e 

10 m a t e r i a l , d i f f e r e n t method, s i m i l a r study. 

11 But t h i s i s long term, a c t u a l l y t r a v e l i n g 

12 great distances from one wellbore t o another. This i s 

13 long term. You may never see i t show up over there. 

14 I t ' s two d i f f e r e n t t e s t s , two d i f f e r e n t s i t u a t i o n s . 

15 Q. I f I understand, the short-term t e s t i s around 

16 t h a t wellbore. I t ' s not measured f a r out i n t o the 

17 formation? 

18 A. Yes, s i r . 

19 MR. CARR: Thank you. 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, anything on 

21 that? 

22 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. BRUCE: 

24 Q. Once aga in , Mr. Stubbs was t a l k i n g about i f 

25 water i s i n j e c t e d and i t ' s go ing out o f the zone, i t ' s 
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1 going t o be over at h i s w e l l immediately? 

2 A. Right. 

3 Q. I f t h a t occurred, once again, Agua Sucia would 

4 have t o shut down? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much, 

7 Mr. Stone. 

8 Mr. Bruce, would you l i k e t o c a l l your next 

9 witness? 

10 MR. BRUCE: Yes. I c a l l Mr. Lee t o the 

11 stand. 

12 

13 

14 ROBERT LEE 

15 Having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. BRUCE: 

18 Q. Please s t a t e your name f o r the record. 

19 A. Robert Lee. 

2 0 Q. And where do you reside? 

21 A. Midland, Texas. 

22 Q. What i s your occupation? 

23 A. I'm a petroleum engineering consultant. 

24 Q. Have you been r e t a i n e d by Agua Sucia w i t h 

25 respect t o t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1-1 d 4-41 Cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 



Page 236 
1 A. I have been. 

2 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

3 Commission? 

4 A. I have not. 

5 Q. Would you summarize your educational and 

6 employment background f o r the Commissioners? 

7 A. Sure. I went t o school a t Ro l l a , Missouri, 

8 between 1975 and 1979. I worked f o r Tenneco O i l out of 

9 San Antonio u n t i l 1989, and then I went t o work f o r HEYCO 

10 O i l & Gas i n Roswell, New Mexico, f o r about 10 years. 

11 Then I moved t o Midland and became a consultant i n 

12 Midland, Texas. 

13 Q. With respect t o your c o n s u l t i n g business, have 

14 you t e s t i f i e d p r e v i o u s l y or prepared m a t e r i a l s f o r 

15 c l i e n t s regarding s a l t w a t e r d i sposal w e l l s or other 

16 i n j e c t i o n w e l l s , such as f o r waterfloods or pressure 

17 maintenance? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the engineering matters 

20 r e l a t e d t o t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I tender Mr. Lee 

23 as an expert petroleum engineer. 

24 MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Lee, are you 
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1 l i c e n s e d p r o f e s s i o n a l engineer i n New Mexico? 

2 THE WITNESS: No, s i r . I'm licensed i n 

3 Texas. I was i n New Mexico, and i t lapsed several years 
4 ago. 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You know the Governor 

6 needs $180. I f you're going t o be working on New Mexico 

7 p r o j e c t s --

8 THE WITNESS: Let me give t h a t t o you 

9 r i g h t now, i f you t h i n k t h a t w i l l help. 

10 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's wait u n t i l a f t e r 

11 the meeting. 

12 MR. CARR: I o b j e c t . 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The p o i n t i s , we t r y t o 

14 encourage people working i n New Mexico be r e g i s t e r e d i n 

15 New Mexico. 

16 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So we'd appreciate i t 

18 i f -- i t costs $180 a year. I j u s t had t o renew mine. 

19 THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t ' s a great bargain, 

21 compared t o what you pay i n Texas. 

22 THE WITNESS: Right. I t ' s 200 there. 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Plus the tax. 

24 THE WITNESS: Yes 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: H e ' l l be so accepted, 
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1 i n s p i t e of being a Texas-registered engineer. 

2 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Lee, t o s t a r t o f f w i t h , do 

3 you b e l i e v e the Government wellbore i s mechanically sound 

4 and can be i n j e c t e d i n t o ? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. Have you reviewed the data i n the C-108, and 

7 do you agree w i t h Mr. Stone's analysis of t h a t data? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. Now, you t e s t i f i e d at the o r i g i n a l hearing i n 

10 t h i s matter? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 Q. And so you heard the testimony from Armstrong 

13 regarding where the w e l l -- what happened before 2008 and 

14 where the water came from, et cetera? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. Have you prepared a series of e x h i b i t s t o show 

17 what you t h i n k happened d u r i n g t h a t time frame? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Would you i d e n t i f y your E x h i b i t 10 f o r the 

2 0 Commissioners and b r i e f l y describe what t h a t shows? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . E x h i b i t 10 i s a production d e c l i n e 

22 curve of the o r i g i n a l Government E Bone Spring w e l l . I t 

23 shows down i n the lower l e f t - h a n d corner t h a t i t has 
24 produced 181,000 b a r r e l s of o i l , over i n the right-hand 

25 corner, h a l f a bcf of gas. There's a l i t t l e box up there 
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1 on the curve saying i t ' s produced 121,000 b a r r e l s of 

2 water. I t was shut i n back i n 1993, at the time i t was 

3 converted t o i n j e c t i o n . 

4 Q. W i l l t h a t form the basis f o r your l a t e r 

5 testimony regarding the r e s e r v o i r voidage, et cetera? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 11? 

8 A. E x h i b i t 11 i s a p l o t of the Government E 

9 i n j e c t i o n volumes, showing t h a t i t s t a r t s i n j e c t i o n i n 10 

10 of '94. The scale f o r water i n j e c t i o n volume i s shown on 

11 the l e f t - h a n d side, and those are i n thousands of b a r r e l s 

12 a month. So where you see 10, t h a t ' s 10,000 b a r r e l s a 

13 month, up t o the next l o g a r i t h m i c scale, t h a t would be 

14 100,000 b a r r e l s a month. So when they s t a r t e d i n j e c t i o n , 

15 i t was about 20,000 b a r r e l s a month. 

16 Across the top, I noted where they had issues, 

17 t u b i n g leaks, problems w i t h the w e l l . And they ran MITs 

18 t h a t were s a t i s f a c t o r y , the l a s t one being i n 9 of '05. 

19 The p e r i o d i n 2001, where the w e l l i s shut i n , 

2 0 i s a time frame of -- between operators. The o r i g i n a l 

21 w e l l was converted by a company c a l l e d Subsurface. And a 

22 man name Lowell Deckert was the operator, and he sold the 

23 w e l l . He shut i t i n i n 2000 and s o l d the w e l l t o Louray, 

24 and he commenced i n j e c t i o n i n 2002. 

25 Q. So t h a t p e r i o d where there was no water t h a t 
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1 was i n j e c t e d , i t wasn't due t o any mechanical reason. I t 

2 was j u s t a change-of-operator s i t u a t i o n ? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . And also, on the box on the 

4 curve i n the lower r i g h t - h a n d corner, cumulative 

5 i n j e c t i o n t o date, almost 3.2 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s of water. 

6 Q. Now, what i s E x h i b i t 12? I t ' s several 

7 e x h i b i t s s t a p l e d together. 

8 A. E x h i b i t 12, the f r o n t sheet i s a p l o t of a l l 

9 the Armstrong w e l l s i n Section 25. 

10 Q. Are these Queen producers? 

11 A. Yes. On t h i s curve, I'm showing o i l , gas and 

12 water p r o d u c t i o n . O i l i s green, gas i s red, and water i s 

13 blue. I've got some of the same notes of what was going 

14 on i n the l i f e of the Government E l , showing when i t was 

15 converted, various MITs, t h i n g s of t h a t nature. 

16 Q. And as you noted on your e x h i b i t , about the 

17 time the Government -- the Government El was shut i n i n 

18 e a r l y 2008; co r r e c t ? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. Or stopped i n j e c t i n g , I should say? 

21 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

22 Q. And the water p r o d u c t i o n on the f i r s t page of 

23 E x h i b i t 12 shows t h a t i t decreases? 

24 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. Now, i t l a t e r goes back up, the water 
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1 production. 

2 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

3 Q. Could you comment on that? 

4 A. Yes. Kind of i n the middle of 2009, the water 

5 takes a jump from about 3,000 b a r r e l s a month up t o about 

6 5,000 b a r r e l s a month. 

7 When I was l o o k i n g around a t why t h a t may 

8 occur, we found the o f f s e t i n j e c t i o n of Well Number 15 i n 

9 the o f f s e t f l o o d , which i s i n u n i t l e t t e r A of Section 

10 35. I t had been a producer f o r a whi l e -- and we're 

11 going t o get t o t h a t e x h i b i t i n a minute. I k i n d of 

12 jumped ahead on the s t o r y . 

13 I t was a producer, and then i n 1998, i t was 

14 converted. I t had been shut i n r i g h t a t the beginning of 

15 2008. And i t ' s the clo s e s t i n j e c t i o n w e l l t o the 

16 Armstrong lease. And i n mid-2009, i t comes back on 

17 i n j e c t i o n f o r about 8,000 b a r r e l s a month. And I thought 

18 t h a t k i n d of would e x p l a i n where the water came from. 

19 I n the l a s t hearing, there was testimony given 

20 t h a t the Well Number 5, the Armstrong Superior Well 

21 Number 5, had been shut i n , but brought back on 

22 production. 

23 And t h a t ' s why we attached the i n d i v i d u a l 

24 production curves f o r the Armstrong w e l l s i n Section 25. 

25 Because i f you look through those, the water jump i n k i n d 
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1 of mid-2009 occurred on Wells Number 2, Number 3 and 

2 Number 4. And Number 5 d i d have a jump i n water 

3 production, but i t was i n 2010. 

4 And those three w e l l s t h a t showed the 

5 increased water p r o d u c t i o n are three of the f u r t h e r west 

6 w e l l s o f f s e t t i n g the -- i t used t o be M e r i t . I t ' s 

7 operated by Linn now, Queen f l o o d c a l l e d the Mescalero 

8 Ridge U n i t . 

9 Q. Linn i s L-i-n-n? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Another t h i n g on t h i s -- w e ' l l get t o the 

12 Mer i t i n f o i n a minute. The other t h i n g , l o o k i n g at the 

13 o i l p r o d u c t i o n , at the same time the water production 

14 goes up, there's no increase i n o i l production, i s there? 

15 A. I don't see i t on t h i s curve, no, s i r . 

16 Q. Does t h a t i n d i c a t e t o you t h a t the water i s 

17 not coming from the Government E well? 

18 A. I t can't come from the Government E. The 

19 Government E was shut i n at t h i s p o i n t i n time. 

20 The othe r t h i n g i s , on the water production, 

21 there was, i n 2001, a p r e t t y s i g n i f i c a n t jump i n water 

22 produ c t i o n from about a l i t t l e over 10,000 b a r r e l s a 

23 month up t o almost 30-, dropping down t o about 25,000 a 

24 month there i n the year 2001. But t h a t ' s also the year 

25 t h a t the Government E w e l l was shut i n . 
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And once again, I t h i n k t h a t the water t h a t 

2 was impacting t h i s lease e a r l y on was coming from the 

3 Queen w a t e r f l o o d . Later on -- I mean there's no doubt 

4 they -- Mr. Carr and Mr. Stubbs presented testimony 

5 t h a t --

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, may I ask a 

7 r e a l quick question? 

8 MR. BRUCE: Sure. 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I f i t was coming from 

10 the Queen wa t e r f l o o d , wouldn't we expect t o see some so r t 

11 of response i n the o i l ? 

12 THE WITNESS: Not nec e s s a r i l y . Well, 

13 okay. I f I look at the 15 w e l l --

14 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Let's stop f o r a second. 

15 Let's i d e n t i f y f o r the Commissioners i n f o regarding the 

16 Mescalero Un i t i n j e c t i o n . I s t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n E x h i b i t 

17 13? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. So maybe the Commissioners should have 

20 E x h i b i t s 12 and 13 i n f r o n t of them. 

21 A. That may be handy. 

22 Q. Could you then respond t o the Chairman's 

23 question? 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 E x h i b i t 13 i s a p l o t of the i n j e c t i o n w e l l s i n 
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1 Section 35. You can see there's a p r e t t y b i g jump i n 1 

2 i n j e c t i o n i n 2008. And i f you j u s t f l i p t h a t page, the 

3 Mescalero Unit Number 15 i s k i n d of the c u l p r i t t h ere. 

4 I t comes on i n j e c t i o n i n mid-2008. And you can see t h a t 

5 i t ' s p u t t i n g away almost 28,000 b a r r e l s a month f o r a few 

6 months, and then i t drops down t o 10-, 15,000 b a r r e l s a 

7 month and k i n d of i n j e c t s on through there. 

8 Like I say, i t shuts i n i n 2008 and then picks 

9 back up again i n 2009. 

10 Q. Again, e a r l y 2008 i s when the Government E 

11 stopped i n j e c t i n g ? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. And then r i g h t around 2009, you see an 

14 increase i n water p r o d u c t i o n from the Armstrong wells? 

15 A. Yes, an increase i n produced water there. 

16 Q. Produced water? 

17 A. Yes. So by the time t h a t they convert t h i s 

18 w e l l i n 2008, you know -- and there may be work orders 

19 inv o l v e d . But you do see bumps i n the o i l production. 

20 But i f you're j u s t i n j e c t i n g water and i t ' s 

21 not -- you should get some increase w i t h the f l o o d f r o n t 

22 moving through t o your producing w e l l s . 

23 But i f you're not g e t t i n g containment and 

24 support from o f f s e t t i n g i n j e c t i o n s w h i l e we make our 

25 p a t t e r n s f i v e spots, because t h a t way, I get pressure 
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1 support from a l l d i r e c t i o n s , you may not see as much of 

2 an o i l bank or much of an o i l increase, increase i n o i l 

3 pro d u c t i o n , as you may expect. 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What p r o b a b i l i t y r a t i o 
5 are you l o o k i n g at i n t h a t f l o o d ; do you know? 

6 THE WITNESS: I don't know. I d i d n ' t look 

7 at the v i s c o s i t i e s . No, I d i d not. 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Even i f you've got an 

9 adverse m o b i l i t y r a t i o , you should see some s o r t of 

10 response i n the o i l production i f you get a water 

11 response i n t o the pay zone; r i g h t ? 

12 THE WITNESS: You should. I f I look at my 

13 curve, my o i l curve f o r , say, '93 through '96 --

14 MR. BRUCE: On what e x h i b i t ? 

15 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, on E x h i b i t 12. 

16 That's about a 15 percent d e c l i n e i n those f i r s t three 

17 years. There's a breakover i n production, where i t k i n d 

18 of -- there's a f l a t t e n i n g i n production i n '97. There's 

19 a water increase i n e a r l y '96. So maybe ins t e a d of 

2 0 r e a l l y a response, maybe I'm g e t t i n g a f l a t t e n i n g i n 

21 t h e i r o i l production. 

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So you're saying the 

23 jump i n production d u r i n g 2002 i s t h a t response t h a t 

24 we're l o o k i n g for? 

25 THE WITNESS: I don't have enough 
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1 i n f o r m a t i o n on the operations of the w e l l s and what was 

2 going on on the lease. I don't have the w e l l f i l e s or 

3 anything t o see -- w e l l t e s t s t o see what was going on on 

4 t h a t lease, so I don't know what happened. Maybe i t was 

5 a c i d i z e d w e l l s and the f a l l o u t response from t h a t . 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But at the end of 2004, 

7 your water p r o d u c t i o n doubled, and there was no change i n 

8 the o i l response. 

9 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . 

10 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Wouldn't t h a t i n d i c a t e 

11 t h a t the water i s coming from a zone other than the pay 

12 zone? 

13 THE WITNESS: I f I'm having i n j e c t i o n i n t o 

14 3 5A i n the Well Number 15, I'm not going t o n e c e s s a r i l y 

15 expect t o f l o o d the whole s e c t i o n of 25. I may have --

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But i f you get a b e t t e r 

17 response, you have some s o r t of sweep. 

18 THE WITNESS: Maybe I had a breakthrough. 

19 I don't know. I'm s i t t i n g here going, "What could create 

20 t h a t ? " 

21 And I could have a s i t u a t i o n where I had water 

22 come up t o the f i r s t w e l l s , and I'm seeing t h i s 

23 f l a t t e n i n g . I get a l i t t l e b i t of incremental o i l out of 

24 i t , and then here comes the water. The production curves 

25 don't r e a l l y i n d i c a t e t h a t , though. 
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1 The produc t i o n curves I'm seeing, as f a r as 

2 the repo r t e d data sees various jumps i n production, jumps 

3 i n water production, water production drops, and i t 

4 behaves very e r r a t i c a l l y on the production curves. So i n 

5 t h i s s i t u a t i o n , I'm going t o say I can't d e f i n i t i v e l y 

6 e x p l a i n why I'm not seeing an o i l response. 

7 I n other s i t u a t i o n s , i f I have an o f f s e t 

8 f l o o d , once I get t o my f i r s t w e l l s , the water h i t s t h a t , 

9 t h a t ' s the pressure you're seeing. Probably my 

10 w a t e r f l o o d f r o n t doesn't go past the f i r s t w e l l s t o 

11 impact the r e s t of the lease. But I'm not seeing t h a t on 

12 the data here. I'm not sure what's going on here. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, I apologize. 

14 I j u s t wanted t o ask t h a t w h i l e we were there. 

15 THE WITNESS: Good question. 

16 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) But again, i f you compare 

17 E x h i b i t s 12 and 13, the f i r s t page of each, Mr. Lee, 

18 somewhere around, say, '99, the Armstrong w e l l s d i d see 

19 an increase i n production? 

2 0 A. That's c o r r e c t . And I can't e x p l a i n why. 

21 Q. I f you look at E x h i b i t 13, there was increased 

22 i n j e c t i o n s t a r t i n g i n l a t e '98 i n t o the Mescalero 

23 o f f s e t s ? 

24 A. P r i o r t o t h a t , yes, s i r . I t ' s going t o take a 

25 w h i l e t o f i l l up the volume there f rom the Number 15 
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1 because i t was s t i l l a producing w e l l and had j u s t been | 

2 converted there i n '98. So maybe i t took a while t o get 

3 there, yeah. That's what I'm seeing. That's why I'm 

4 saying t h a t . 

5 Q. I t ' s c e r t a i n l y a reasonable inference t h a t the 

6 increase i n water production i n the Armstrong w e l l s i s 

7 coming from o f f lease? 

8 A. That was our con t e n t i o n . But towards the end 

9 of i t , we know t h a t there's a problem. And you know, we 

10 know we have a good MIT at 9/05. And s h o r t l y a f t e r t h a t , 

11 l o o k i n g a t E x h i b i t Number 11, the water i n j e c t i o n i n the 

12 Government E takes a p r e t t y dramatic increase. 

13 So i f I was t o look a t what p o i n t i n time t h i s 

14 t u b i n g casing f a i l u r e may have occurred, I would k i n d of 

15 p o i n t t o t h a t i n 2006. And i t was s h o r t l y a f t e r t h a t 

16 t h a t these w e l l s i n Section 25, l o o k i n g at the t o t a l 

17 curve, s t a r t going from 7,000, 7,500 b a r r e l s a month up 

18 t o n e a r l y 9,000 b a r r e l s a month. 

19 Q. Do you could have anything f u r t h e r on those 

20 e x h i b i t s ? 

21 A. I don't t h i n k so. 

22 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 14? 

23 A. E x h i b i t 14 i s a t a b l e , the t a b u l a r production 

24 data f o r the Superior w e l l s f o r 2010. 

25 Q. Why i s t h i s included i n your e x h i b i t package? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1C14-41 cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 



Page 249 

1 A. I t was j u s t t o also -- we also looked j u s t t o 

2 make sure t h a t when I p u l l e d data out of IHS, t h a t I'm 

3 not p i c k i n g up anything erroneous. This i s what's 

4 a c t u a l l y r e p o r t e d t o the State. And i t confirmed the 

5 numbers t h a t we see on our production curve on E x h i b i t 

6 12. 

7 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 15? 

8 A. E x h i b i t 15 i s a comp i l a t i o n of the Mescalero 

9 Ridge U n i t . And what I was t r y i n g t o resolve here or 

10 f i g u r e out i s , you know, i f I want t o say t h a t I've got 

11 water going o f f lease, I had b e t t e r have excess i n j e c t i o n 

12 where I say i t ' s coming from. 

13 So here I'm showing the lease h i s t o r y . You 

14 can see the o i l production, water production, water 

15 i n j e c t i o n , i n pur p l e . And i f I look here, the t o t a l 

16 h i s t o r i c a l o i l cum. r i g h t now i s almost 2.8 m i l l i o n 

17 b a r r e l s , and water production i s almost 9.4 m i l l i o n 

18 b a r r e l s . The cumulative water i n j e c t i o n i s almost 19 

19 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s . And I estimated r e s e r v o i r voidage on 

20 the Queen, o i l of 1.22. That 2.771 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s 

21 t r a n s l a t e s t o 3.381 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s of r e s e r v o i r volume. 

22 So I added my r e s e r v o i r volume o i l , my water 

23 production, and got about 12.7 m i l l i o n r e s e r v o i r b a r r e l s 

24 taken out of the formation. So the i n j e c t i o n was almost 

25 5.8 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s greater than the production. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 d 4-41 cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 



Page 250 
1 Q. You don't t h i n k t h a t ' s unusual i n an i n j e c t i o n 

2 s i t u a t i o n , do you? 

3 A. No. We see t h a t . Water i s not contained by 

4 the lease l i n e s , and i t moves t o the p o i n t of l e a s t 

5 re s i s t a n c e . 

6 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 16? 

7 A. E x h i b i t 16 i s the same type of pre s e n t a t i o n , 

8 but I included e v e r y t h i n g -- a l l the Queen production 

9 from Section 25, once again seeing how the t o t a l system 

10 i n j e c t i o n / w i t h d r a w a l r a t i o s may look. 

11 And here my o i l numbers go up. I got almost 

12 3.6 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s of o i l and 4.4 m i l l i o n r e s e r v o i r 

13 b a r r e l s . Water pro d u c t i o n was 10.4 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s . So 

14 my estimated r e s e r v o i r voidage was about 15 m i l l i o n 

15 b a r r e l s , and i n j e c t i o n i s s t i l l about 15.6 -- I mean 

16 18.6. So the i n j e c t i o n i s about 3.7 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s 

17 greater than the production. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Lee, can I take 

19 another --

20 THE WITNESS: Sure. 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: -- divergence here? 

22 Since 2003, your water i n j e c t e d and water 

23 produced curves have b a s i c a l l y been t r a c k i n g , so they are 

24 operating t h i s w a t e r f l o o d above the bubble p o i n t . That 

25 doesn't look l i k e a r e s e r v o i r t h a t ' s got some s o r t of 
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1 e x t e r n a l i n f l u e n c e t h a t i s n ' t p i c t u r e d on t h i s curve, 

2 does i t ? 

3 THE WITNESS: An e x t e r n a l -- no, I don't 

4 t h i n k there's an e x t e r n a l i n f l u e n c e . I t h i n k i t ' s almost 

5 a --

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But t h i s doesn't 

7 include the Government E i n j e c t i o n , does i t , t h i s curve? 

8 THE WITNESS: No, i t does not. 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But t h i s j u s t includes 

10 the u n i t i n j e c t i o n ; c o r r e c t ? 

11 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . 

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Yet the u n i t i n j e c t i o n 

13 and the water produced are e s s e n t i a l l y t r a c k i n g l i k e 

14 r a i l r o a d t r a c k s here. That doesn't look t o me l i k e a 

15 f l o o d t h a t ' s got some s o r t of e x t e r n a l i n f l o w i n t o i t . 

16 THE WITNESS: Right. They were j u s t 

17 b a s i c a l l y p u t t i n g away t h e i r produced water. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: There's no make-up 

19 water going i n t o i t e i t h e r from the surface or the --

20 THE WITNESS: There has been make-up water 

21 going i n t o t h i s . I don't know i f there i s now or not. 

2 2 I f you look back when the f l o o d k i n d of 

23 s t a r t e d i n 1974, you can see t h a t they were i n j e c t i n g 

24 q u i t e a b i t more water than they were producing. 

25 That's one of the things t h a t was brought up 
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1 at the l a s t hearing, i s t h a t they were using f r e s h water. 

2 And there's a d i f f e r e n c e i n c h l o r i d e s from the Mescalero 

3 Ridge U n i t . And we have s t u f f l a t e r on where we see low 

4 c h l o r i d e produced water i n w e l l s down i n Section 36, 

5 i n d i c a t i n g once again t h a t the i n j e c t i o n water was going 

6 o f f lease and impacting w e l l s i n Section 36. 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I apologize, Mr. Bruce. 

8 Go ahead. 

9 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Lee, although you don't 

10 have --we d i d n ' t submit an e x h i b i t , d i d you check other 

11 Bone Spring s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l s w i t h respect t o 

12 voidage of the r e s e r v o i r when they produced, as opposed 

13 t o the i n j e c t i o n i n t o the r e s e r v o i r when they were 

14 converted t o i n j e c t i o n ? 

15 A. Yes, s i r . 

16 Q. What d i d you f i n d ? 

17 A. I found t h a t i t ' s not uncommon f o r Bone Spring 

18 i n j e c t i o n w e l l s t o have sometimes s i g n i f i c a n t l y higher 

19 i n j e c t i o n t o withdrawal r a t i o s than -- more i n j e c t i o n 

20 than was p u l l e d out of the r e s e r v o i r . 

21 Another t h i n g t h a t I found when I was l o o k i n g 

22 i n t o t h i s , knowing t h a t was becoming an issue, because I 

23 seen i t before, so i t wasn't a p a r t i c u l a r l y alarming 

24 t h i n g . But the Government E w e l l was producing out of 

25 the Lee Bone Spring f i e l d a t a depth of about 9,700 f e e t , 
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1 and i t ' s l o c a t e d there i n Section 25. 

2 But i f you move t o the south, there's probably 

3 about seven or e i g h t other Bone Spring w e l l s producing 

4 out of the Lee Bone Spring f i e l d . And I di d n ' t get a l o g 

5 and b u i l d a cross-s e c t i o n , but the completion depths are 

6 comparable, around 9,600 t o 9,700 f e e t . So i t looks l i k e 

7 i t ' s a l l p a r t of the same r e s e r v o i r . 

8 When you look at the produc t i o n from those 

9 w e l l s , I c a l c u l a t e d t h a t there was n e a r l y 2.2 m i l l i o n 

10 b a r r e l s of -- r e s e r v o i r b a r r e l s taken out of the system 

11 i n o i l and water, and my Government E i s t i e d i n t o t h a t 

12 same r e s e r v o i r . That's another place where I could see 

13 water going i n t o the zone. 

14 When you include the other w e l l s , i t d r i v e s 

15 t h a t -- in s t e a d of 10 t o 1, i t d r i v e s i t down t o about 

16 one-and-a-half t o one. 

17 Q. I n your experience, i s i t unusual t o see 

18 r a t i o s l i k e t h a t , i n j e c t i o n t o r e s e r v o i r voidage? 

19 A. No. I don't know. I've w r e s t l e d on t h i s a 

2 0 l o t , you know. I t ' s l i k e , "Why i s that ? I've got t h i s 

21 l i q u i d - f i l l e d system, take the b a r r e l s out, put the 

22 b a r r e l s i n . " There's an e x t r a leprechaun somewhere i n 

23 the p i c t u r e . 

24 But I t h i n k what happens i s t h a t i t ' s not 

25 n e c e s s a r i l y always a l i q u i d - f i l l e d r e s e r v o i r . Sometimes 
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1 when we d r i l l these, there's some f r e e gas i n the 

2 r e s e r v o i r . Whenever you go out and d r i l l a w e l l and you 

3 p e r f o r a t e i t and i t ' s a wet w e l l and you produce i t back, 

4 i t ' s not uncommon t o see gas come back w i t h t h a t . You 

5 have some f i z z i n the water and you smell gas. I t h i n k 

6 t h a t these r e s e r v o i r s have some f r e e gas component i n i t 

7 t h a t w i l l compress. And l i k e I said --

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At 9,700 feet? 

9 THE WITNESS: Um-hum, po s s i b l y . I t 

10 depends on what the makeup of the water i s , the makeup of 

11 hydrocarbon i s . And I d i d n ' t do a PBT anal y s i s or 

12 anything l i k e t h a t . 

13 But j u s t l o o k i n g a t the i n i t i a l GOR, and 

14 assuming a r e s e r v o i r pressure a t a .4 grad i e n t , i t looked 

15 l i k e , i n the Government E Number 1, t h a t there may have 

16 been some f r e e gas i n the r e s e r v o i r when i t was i n i t i a l l y 

17 d r i l l e d , based on the GOR t h a t I saw. 

18 Now, am I reading the chart wrong? I'm not 

19 going t o say there was f r e e gas. I'm saying t h a t my 

2 0 standing c o r r e l a t i o n s i n d i c a t e d t h a t there may have been. 

21 Like I s a i d , t h a t ' s not something I brought t o t e s t i f y 

22 t o . But I t h i n k t h a t there's f r e e gas i n these 

23 r e s e r v o i r s , and t h a t ' s why you're able t o i n j e c t more 

24 than was taken out sometimes. 

25 Plus, the Bone Spring i s a huge, massive 
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r e s e r v o i r . And there's l o t s of places where the water 

2 could go, I mean, because i t ' s so t h i c k . 

3 MR. BRUCE: Just a couple of thi n g s 

4 b r i e f l y . 

5 I f I may approach the witness? 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

7 MR. BRUCE: I t h i n k , Mr. Chairman, I 

8 marked two e x h i b i t s 16A. The one t h a t I j u s t handed 

9 Mr. Lee i s from Cardinal Laboratories. I marked t h a t 16, 

10 and I t h i n k i t probably should be 16A. 

11 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are these the e x h i b i t s 

12 t h a t --

13 MR. BRUCE: -- t h a t were f i l e d l a t e . 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Does the court 

15 r e p o r t e r have a copy? 

16 MR. BRUCE: I submitted s i x copies t o the 

17 Commission. I f not, Mr. Lee can hand h i s e x h i b i t s t o the 

18 court r e p o r t e r . 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's make sure she's 

20 got an e x h i b i t here. I t ' s marked "Cardinal 

21 Laboratories." I hand d e l i v e r e d them t o the D i v i s i o n 

22 yesterday. 

23 MR. SMITH: I have these. Do you want me 

24 t o give these t o her? 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's make sure she's 
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1 got one t h a t ' s l a b e l e d 16A. 

2 MR. BRUCE: What I marked as 16 should be 

3 16A, i s what I'm saying. I already had Mr. Lee t e s t i f y 

4 as t o E x h i b i t 16. 

5 MR. SMITH: Why don't you go ahead and 

6 mark i t ? 

7 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) What i s E x h i b i t 16A, 

8 Mr. Lee? 

9 A. This i s a water an a l y s i s done by Cardinal 

10 Laboratories, a water a n a l y s i s on the Armstrong 6, 

11 Government E Number 1, Mescalero Ridge water, and a w e l l 

12 c a l l the Sarah Sue Number 3, which i s loc a t e d i n Section 

13 36, u n i t l e t t e r D. 

14 Q. I f you t u r n t o page 2 -- why d i d you submit 

15 t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

16 A. I f I look a t the -- l o o k i n g at the water 

17 c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s , I look a t the sodium up there i n the 

18 f i r s t column, the Na, and I see t h a t the Mescalero Ridge 

19 Unit has a sodium content of about 48,000. The Sarah 

20 Sue, which i s a Queen producer, has sodium of about 

21 37,000, whereas the Armstrong 6 and Government 1 had 55-

22 t o 60,000 p a r t s per m i l l i o n or m i l l i g r a m s per l i t e r 

23 sodium. 

24 And when you look at the c h l o r i d e content , you 

25 see a s i m i l a r t h i n g . The Mescalero U n i t had 98,000 pa r t s 
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1 per m i l l i o n , and Sarah Sue, 76,000 p a r t s per m i l l i o n . 

2 So t h a t was i n d i c a t i n g t o me t h a t there was 

3 Mescalero Ridge water impacting the Sarah Sue Number 3 

4 w e l l , which i s i n u n i t l e t t e r D of Section 36, outside 

5 the u n i t . 

6 Q. I t ' s j u s t showing t h a t the water -- i n your 

7 opinion, water from the M e r i t w a t e r f l o o d was m i g r a t i n g 

8 o f f lease? 

9 A. That's c o r r e c t . This w e l l i s j u s t a l i t t l e 

10 b i t c l o s e r than the Superior Number 5. 

11 Q. Then f i n a l l y , E x h i b i t 17, which i s a 

12 stapled-together i n v o i c e from T r i p l e N, how d i d you get 

13 t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

14 A. I c a l l e d Jim Newman t o see i f he remembered 

15 anything about t h i s w e l l . He was w i t h T r i p l e N at the 

16 time the work was done. He's w i t h Basic now, and he was 

17 able t o d i g t h i s out of h i s f i l e and send i t t o us. 

18 Q. This r e l a t e s t o the work t h a t was done by 

19 Louray back i n February of 2 0 08? 

20 A. Yes, s i r , the o r i g i n a l f i r s t attempt squeeze 

21 job t h a t was done. 

22 Q. And you were at the p r i o r hearing when 

23 Armstrong questioned Agua Sucia's witnesses about 

24 evidence of work done at t h a t time? 

25 A. Right. 
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1 Q. So what i s the purpose of t h i s e x h i b i t ? I 

2 A. This does demonstrate t h a t the work was done. j 

3 I t wasn't something j u s t t h a t -- Louis Edgett noted i t | 

4 was a c t u a l l y from the company t h a t d i d the work w i t h the j 
5 volumes and pressures and ra t e s t h a t they pumped the j 

6 cement away a t . j 

7 Q. Just a couple of t h i n g s from the p r i o r order. 

8 One of the f i n d i n g s i n the p r i o r order was t h a t ! 

9 something -- i t was a c t u a l l y Finding 11(N), about j 

10 something i s a l l o w i n g d i r e c t communications between the j 

11 Bone Spring, Delaware, San Andres, and Queen formations 

12 i n t h i s area. Do you agree w i t h t h a t f i n d i n g ? j 

13 A. No. j 

14 Q. Why i s that? 

15 A. I t seems l i k e the water impacting the j 

16 Armstrong lease was e i t h e r coming from i n i t i a l l y the 

17 M e r i t f l o o d and l a t e r on, c e r t a i n l y from the Government E 

18 Number 1. | 

19 I have not seen anything from a g e o l o g i c a l | 

2 0 standpoint t h a t would i n d i c a t e there's f r a c t u r e s from j 

21 9,700 f e e t up t o 5,000 f e e t out here, or a f a u l t . I do j 

22 have a l o g on the w e l l . There's no repeat sections, 

23 nothing t h a t i n d i c a t e s a f a u l t from the i n j e c t i o n zones ; 

24 t h a t they are p u t t i n g water away i n . 1 

25 Not only was i t the zone t h a t they produced • 
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1 out of, but they added an a d d i t i o n a l zone i n t h a t w e l l 

2 whenever Subsurface turned i t i n t o a water disposal w e l l . 

3 But between t h a t i n t e r v a l and the Delaware, there's 

4 hundreds of f e e t of Bone Spring carbonate w i t h 2 percent 

5 neutron p o r o s i t y . I t j u s t looks very, very t i g h t , very 

6 dense. I don't b e l i e v e t h a t t h i s water i s going t o be 

7 m i g r a t i n g through t h a t , through any v e r t i c a l p e r m e a b i l i t y 

8 t h a t may e x i s t t here. 

9 Q. I n other words, again -- and you've t e s t i f i e d 

10 about t h i s before, Mr. Lee -- there could have been --

11 during the p e r i o d of time before January 2 008, when 

12 Louray operated the w e l l , there could have been i n j e c t i o n 

13 water going i n t o the Queen? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. But there wasn't any water coming from the 

16 Bone Spring up t o the Queen? I s t h a t your opinion? 

17 A. C e r t a i n l y I do not b e l i e v e through the 

18 formation, and probably not even through the i n j e c t i o n . 

19 The only way i t would do t h a t i s i f they ever shut down 

20 the i n j e c t i o n , the Bone Spring may come out and back flow 

21 up t o the Queen. I can see t h a t being a s i t u a t i o n . 

22 As long as I'm p u t t i n g water down the w e l l , 

23 i t ' s not going t o come out of the Bone Spring. The 

24 i n j e c t i o n water i s going t o hold i t back, and i t ' s going I 

2 5 t o go out the Queen or go down t o the Bone Spring, 
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1 wherever the path of l e a s t r esistance i s . 

2 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

3 a p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 

4 preven t i o n of waste? 

5 A. Yes, i t i s . 

6 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 10 through 16 prepared by you? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. And was e x h i b i t -- where d i d you get E x h i b i t 

9 16A, the water analysis? 

10 A. 16A, I had asked Mr. Stone t o contact 

11 Mr. Edgett t o see i f he had any water analyses on the 

12 Sarah Sue w e l l -- i t shows the operator on t h a t w e l l --

13 and he d i d . 

14 Q. And you p e r s o n a l l y obtained E x h i b i t 17, the 

15 T r i p l e N information? 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

17 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I move the 

18 admission of E x h i b i t s 10 through 15, 16, 16A and 17. 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any objection? 

20 MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The record w i l l r e f l e c t 

22 t h a t E x h i b i t s 10 through 15, 16, 16A and 17 are admitted. 

23 (Agua Sucia E x h i b i t s 10 through 16, 16A and 17 were 

24 admitted.) 

2 5 MR. BRUCE: And I pass the witness. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr? 

2 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. CARR: 

4 Q. Mr. Lee, j u s t a few questions. Let's go t o 

5 E x h i b i t 10. 

6 A. Sure. 

7 Q. This i s j u s t a production h i s t o r y on the 

8 Government E w e l l before i t was converted t o a disposal 

9 w e l l ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

10 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. We have 181,000 b a r r e l s of o i l and 121,000 

12 b a r r e l s of water taken out of t h a t well? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . 

14 Q. That t o t a l s approximately 310,000 barre l s ? 

15 A. We have --

16 Q. 302,000? 

17 A. Well, yes, based on what you see. But because 

18 I've got gas, I've got t o put the gas pump back i n the 

19 s o l u t i o n . That's why --

2 0 Q. That's the t o t a l volume of o i l and water taken 

21 out of the well? 

22 A. That's c o r r e c t . That equivalates t o about 

23 400,000 r e s e r v o i r b a r r e l s taken out. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. Now, go t o E x h i b i t Number 11. Doesn't t h a t 

25 show the cumulative i n j e c t i o n i n t o t h a t well? 
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1 A. 3.2 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s . 

2 Q. So you put 3.2 m i l l i o n i n , and you've taken 

3 302,000 out? 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. Where d i d t h a t go? 

6 A. The --

7 Q. Was i t i n the Bone Spring? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Didn't you also have some going i n t o the 

10 Queen? 

11 A. Yes. I t h i n k --

12 Q. Do you know how much went i n any of these 

13 places? 

14 A. You know, i f I -- i t would take some f i g u r i n g . 

15 I'm going t o say before 2006, I t h i n k those volumes were 

16 going i n t o the Bone Spring. 

17 Q. And you t h i n k the wellbore i n t e g r i t y was 

18 e s t a b l i s h e d i n 2006? 

19 A. Yes. And the reason I say t h a t i s i n '95, we 

2 0 had an MIT t h a t was good. So the t r a i n wreck occurred 

21 some time a f t e r t h a t . Looking a t t h a t i n j e c t i o n curve, 

22 j u s t w i t h those volumes going up, something changed. And 

23 so t h a t would be a p o i n t t h a t I ' d p o i n t t o and say, 

24 "Maybe i t happened then." 

25 A f t e r t h a t , I t h i n k some of the water i s going 
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the Bone Spring. Maybe some i s going i n t o the 

2 Queen. We know some i s d e f i n i t e l y going t o the Queen, 

3 because t h a t ' s what you showed us l a s t time. 

4 Q. I f we look at your E x h i b i t Number 12, the 

5 i n t e g r i t y of the w e l l , I b e l i e v e you j u s t t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

6 you b e l i e v e i t was sound through when? 

7 A. 9 of '05. 

8 Q. Anything beyond that? 

9 A. Previous t o t h a t , I t h i n k the w e l l had 

10 i n t e g r i t y because my MIT was good. 

11 Q. When you saw t h a t the Government E was shut i n 

12 i n e a r l y ' 08, you would agree you do see a drop i n the 

13 water production? 

14 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. That was before the time there was any 

16 p o t e n t i a l increase i n w e l l s i n the Mescalero Ridge; i s 

17 t h a t not true? 

18 A. Well, the Number 15 was shut i n at --

19 Q. Are you t e l l i n g me t h a t t h i s d e c l i n e t h a t you 

20 see on the water production has nothing t o do w i t h 

21 Government E? 

22 A. Oh, no. I t does. I t h i n k i t ' s a combination 

23 of t h i n g s . 

24 Q. So when there was water coming out of the 

25 Government E i n t o the Queen, t h a t would be causing some 
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1 of t h i s water t o be shown produced i n 2006, '7 and 18; 

2 r i g h t ? 

3 A. Yes, because --

4 Q. And you also had a f a i r l y steady b i t of 

5 pro d u c t i o n of water back from '2, '3, '4, r i g h t along; 

6 d i d you not? 

7 A. Right along before t h a t or --

8 Q. Yes. Uh-huh. 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. Do you t h i n k t h a t none of t h a t was from the 

11 Government E well? 

12 A. I'm not sure where i t was coming from, but I'm 

13 going t o say i t wasn't from the Government E. I t appears 

14 t h a t we had mechanical i n t e g r i t y . 

15 Q. So there would be no i n f l u e n c e on t h a t water 

16 curve from the Government E? 

17 A. Based on the data t h a t I've looked at so f a r , 

18 I would say yes. 

19 Q. We had t h a t new l o g t h a t you produced today --

20 I don't know what you c a l l i t -- i n s p e c t i o n l o g . That 

21 was i n 2001. That also showed the i n t e g r i t y of the w e l l 

22 i n 2001? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. When you stopped i n j e c t i n g i n the Government E 

25 d u r i n g 2001, we a l so see a d e c l i n e i n the water d u r i n g 
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1 t h a t p e r i o d ; do we not? 

2 A. You saw an increase. 

3 Q. You don't see i n the year 2 001, from January 

4 t o December, a d e c l i n e i n the water production? 

5 A. I see a tremendous increase from l i k e October 

6 of 2000 t o the f i r s t p a r t of 2001. 

7 Q. What about t o the end of 2001? What does the 

8 water do i n t h a t 12-month period? 

9 A. I t drops o f f . 

10 Q. I t drops. But we have wellbore i n t e g r i t y 

11 then, too; do we not? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. So you're seeing a l l t h i s water jumping 

14 around, you see a l l the o i l p r o d u c t i o n f a i r l y constant, 

15 but you t h i n k i t ' s not coming from an outside source? I s 

16 t h a t your testimony? 

17 A. That i s c o r r e c t . And I guess one reason I 

18 t h i n k t h a t i s , when I look at my E x h i b i t 13, I look at 

19 the o f f s e t i n j e c t i o n i n 35, t h a t water i n j e c t i o n also 

20 s t a r t e d dropping i n mid-2000. I t takes a l i t t l e w h ile 

21 f o r a response t o k i n d of get th e r e . So by the time 2001 

22 r o l l s around, I severely cut back my Section 35 i n j e c t i o n 

23 volumes also. 
24 Q. I b e l i e v e you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you t h i n k the 

25 wellbore i s sound today, so you have i n t e g r i t y today? 
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1 A. Yes, s i r , a f t e r a l l the work was done. 

2 Q. And we had i n t e g r i t y through, I guess, about 

3 2006? 

4 A. That's my guess, yes, s i r . 

5 Q. And so what we have today, we're going t o see 

6 something comparable t o what we had p r i o r t o 2006, 

7 because we have a sound Government E both times? 

8 A. You want t o see something comparable --

9 Q. The wellbore was sound from 2006 u n t i l today? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. So we're back t o where we were then? 

12 A. Not n e c e s s a r i l y . 

13 Q. A l l t h i s --

14 A. The reason not n e c e s s a r i l y i s because I know 

15 we've put water i n t o the Queen. So there was water t h a t 

16 went out t h a t ' s out i n t h a t r e s e r v o i r r i g h t now t h a t ' s 

17 going t o need t o be produced. I don't know how much t h a t 

18 i s , but I know t h a t there was water t h a t went i n t o the 

19 Queen. So t h a t ' s something t h a t ' s d i f f e r e n t now. 

20 Q. But you're t e l l i n g me t h a t the way the water 

21 curve jumped around p r i o r t o 2 006 has nothing t o do w i t h 

22 the Government E, and the wellbore was sound at t h a t 

23 time? 

24 A. Based on the data I see, yes, s i r . 

25 Q. And then when the we l lbo re developed problems, 
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1 we don't see a change i n the curve. But t h a t d i d n ' t have 

2 anything t o do w i t h the Government E; r i g h t ? 

3 A. No. The water production went up. I t went 

4 from l i k e 7,000 t o almost 9,000 b a r r e l s a month. 

5 Q. And the volumes you're seeing was i n j e c t e d out 

6 of the Government E? 

7 A. No. I'm saying t h a t would be the volumes t h a t 

8 would i n j e c t e d out of the Government E t h a t passed 

9 through the r e s e r v o i r t h a t came out the producing w e l l s . 

10 There could be -- because the r e s e r v o i r i s somewhat --

11 Q. There could be a l o t more water there? 

12 A. There could be water l e f t i n the zone, yes, 

13 s i r . 

14 Q. And i f I was t r y i n g t o produce i n t h a t zone, 

15 I ' d have t o deal w i t h t h a t water now; would I not? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. And t h a t ' s been put i n by a p r i o r operator, so 

18 you wouldn't have any r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r that? I s t h a t 

19 t r u e of your testimony? 

20 A. I wouldn't have any r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r the 

21 water t h a t ' s i n the formation? 

22 Q. That i t ' s okay. We have a new operator today, 

23 and the water i s there? 

24 MR. BRUCE: I would ob j e c t i n s o f a r as t h a t 

25 c a l l s f o r a l e g a l conclusion. 
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1 MR. CARR: I t h i n k the answer i s obvious. 

2 That concludes my examination. 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I ' l l s u s t a i n the 

4 o b j e c t i o n . 

5 Commissioner Bailey? 

6 EXAMINATION 

7 BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

8 Q. Look at E x h i b i t 12 f o r the year 2 009. We see 

9 water prod u c t i o n take a s i g n i f i c a n t jump duri n g 2009? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. The Government E i s shut in? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. So t h a t jump i n water prod u c t i o n cannot be 

14 a t t r i b u t e d t o the i n j e c t i o n well? 

15 A. No. 

16 Q. Do you have an explanation of why t h a t 

17 prod u c t i o n would have jumped? 

18 A. My research showed t h a t the Well Number 15, 

19 which i s i n u n i t l e t t e r A of 35, j u s t o f f s e t the 

2 0 Armstrong u n i t --

21 MR. BRUCE: I s t h a t a M e r i t well? 

22 THE WITNESS: Yes, i t was M e r i t at the 

23 time. I t ' s Linn Energy now. 

24 I n t h i s curve, i t ' s shown i n E x h i b i t 13, the 

25 second curve back. I t s t a r t s i n j e c t i n g k i n d of i n the 
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1 middle of 2009. 

2 So seeing an increase i n water, seeing my 

3 o f f s e t i n j e c t i o n w e l l come back on l i n e , I looked at t h a t 

4 and said i t seemed t o be l o g i c a l t o t h i n k t h a t t h a t may 

5 be where the water was coming from. 

6 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l . 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

8 EXAMINATION 

9 BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

10 Q. Just a f o l l o w up on t h a t . How f a r away i s 

11 the -- I guess the Number 15 from Armstrong wells? 

12 A. I'm j u s t going t o guess here, because I'm 

13 l o o k i n g at a map here. 

14 I ' d l i k e t o also say t h a t t h a t Sarah Sue w e l l 

15 t h a t we saw was about maybe 1,000 f e e t from the Number 

16 15. And the Armstrong w e l l , the clo s e s t w e l l , would be 

17 the Number 5. I t ' s maybe 11-, 12-, 1,300 f e e t , maybe, so 

18 somewhat comparable. Their w e l l i s a l i t t l e f u r t h e r away 

19 than the Sarah Sue w e l l . I t ' s a l o c a t i o n away, 

20 b a s i c a l l y , c a t t y c o r n e r . 

21 COMMISSIONER OLSON: That's a l l I have. 

22 EXAMINATION 

23 BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

24 Q. Along those same l i n e s there, we see 

25 e s s e n t i a l l y , i n the short term, a doubling of the water 
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1 p r o d u c t i o n due t o an i n j e c t o r i n the pay zone coming on 

2 l i n e , and no increase i n o i l production. This looks l i k e 

3 i t continues down the de c l i n e curve. 

4 A. You know, based on what I'm showing, I would 

5 say you're probably r i g h t . I wish I had -- and I don't 

6 know how i t would look, f r a n k l y . There's been --

7 i n j e c t i o n was going on on the Mescalero Ridge Unit since 

8 1974, I t h i n k . 

9 I f I was t o look at the r e s t of the whole 

10 Armstrong curve back t o 1974, I don't know i f I would 

11 have seen an increase i n there or not. Frankly, I wasn't 

12 r e a l l y l o o k i n g a t i t t h a t hard from t h a t perspective. I 

13 was l o o k i n g at i t more up here, w i t h i n the l a s t , you 

14 know, 10, 12 years of the l i f e of i t . 

15 Q. Okay. I t h i n k , from t h i s curve, from what 

16 happened i n 2008, we can d e f i n i t i v e l y say t h a t the 

17 Government E was a f f e c t i n g i t . But i t looks l i k e there 

18 are other t h i n g s a f f e c t i n g the Armstrong w e l l s also, 

19 aren't there? 

20 A. I would agree, yes. 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r 

22 questions. 

23 Mr. Bruce, anything t o f o l l o w up on? 

24 MR. BRUCE: No. 

2 5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Lee, thank you very 
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1 much. 

2 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, do you have 

4 another witness? 

5 MR. BRUCE: I r e s t my case. 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Carr, do you have a 

7 witness? 

8 MR. CARR: I know y o u ' l l be glad t o hear I 

9 have s e v e r a l . 

10 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You understand t h a t we 

11 may not get t o them a l l today? 

12 What i s the pleasure of the Commission? 

13 Se r i o u s l y . 

14 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, could I 

15 i n t e r r u p t ? Could my witnesses be excused? Because they 

16 need t o change t h e i r f l i g h t s r i g h t away. I f they could 

17 be excused from the room t e m p o r a r i l y --

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: As long as you don't 

19 t h i n k you need them. 

20 MR. BRUCE: We w i l l do whatever the 

21 Commission pleases. 

22 MR. CARR: What i s your pleasure? We've 

23 got a w h i l e . 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I f I remember 

25 c o r r e c t l y , i t says two hours or something. 
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1 Commissioner B a i l e y ? 

2 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I bro u g h t f o o d . 

3 MR. CARR: I t may n o t t a k e t h a t l o n g . 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

5 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I br o u g h t f o o d t o 

6 share. 

7 MR. CARR: Can we t a k e about a f i v e - m i n u t e 

8 recess? 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Why don't we do 

10 t h a t ? 

11 (A recess was ta k e n . ) 

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s p o i n t , a f t e r 

13 d i s c u s s i o n w i t h c o u n s e l and r e c o g n i z i n g t h e t i m e , we are 

14 g o i n g t o go ahead and c o n t i n u e t h i s case u n t i l t h e 

15 December 7 t h mee t i n g -- o r December 9 t h , I'm s o r r y . And 

16 we w i l l reconvene i n t h i s room on December 9 t h a t 9:00 

17 a.m. W e ' l l see you a l l t h e r e . 

18 (The h e a r i n g was a d j o u r n e d a t 5:00 p.m.) 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 d 4-41 cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 



Page 273 

1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE 

2 

3 

4 I , JACQUELINE R. LUJAN, New Mexico CCR #91, DO 

5 HEREBY CERTIFY t h a t on November 4, 2010, pr o c e e d i n g s i n 

6 t h e above c a p t i o n e d case were t a k e n b e f o r e me and t h a t I 

7 d i d r e p o r t i n s t e n o g r a p h i c s h o r t h a n d t h e pro c e e d i n g s s e t 

8 f o r t h h e r e i n , and t h e f o r e g o i n g pages are a t r u e and 

9 c o r r e c t t r a n s c r i p t i o n t o t h e b e s t o f my a b i l i t y . 

10 I FURTHER CERTIFY t h a t I am n e i t h e r employed by 

11 n or r e l a t e d t o nor c o n t r a c t e d w i t h any o f t h e p a r t i e s o r 

12 a t t o r n e y s i n t h i s case and t h a t I have no i n t e r e s t 

13 whatsoever i n t h e f i n a l d i s p o s i t i o n o f t h i s case i n any 

14 c o u r t . 

15 WITNESS MY HAND t h i s 1 7 t h day o f November, 

16 2010. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 JC[ 
ycqueVlne R. L u j a n , CCR $ 9 1 

22 ^ x p i r e f e 7 : 12/31/2010 

23 

24 

25 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
68d249c1 -1 cU-41 Cb-a508-6b5f09e1 a493 


